
McCall Redevelopment Agency    April 18, 2023 
Agenda 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda 

April 18, 2023 – 8:00 am 
Legion Hall 

216 E. Park Street, McCall, ID 83638 and Teams Meeting  
 
This is both an in person and virtual meeting. All other people may attend virtually via Teams. Any member of the 
public can join and listen only to the meeting at 8:00 a.m. by calling in as follows: 208-634-8900 Meeting ID 163 
971 200# If there are any questions or you would like a computer link, contact Michelle Groenevelt, Community 

and Economic Development Director at mgroenevelt@mccall.id.us or (208)634-5229. 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Monty Moore, Colby Nielsen, Mike Maciaszek, Tabitha Martineau, Clair Bowman and 
Michelle Rentzsch, 1 vacancy 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) 

 Expenses: Ratification and approval of paid invoices 
o Elam and Burke – February 28, 2023 

 Approval of March 28, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 Review of Financials and Cash Flow Report – City Treasurer Linda Stokes 
 Presentation of FY2022 Audited Financial Statements – Josh Tyree, CPA, Harris 

CPAs 
 Action Item: Consider accepting the FY2022 Audit and authorizing filing with the 

State Controller’s Office and other public entities as may be required by Idaho law 
 Action Item: Consider Resolution No. 04-2023 – Agency participation with City of 

McCall in funding a mural within the Downtown West Project Area  
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
Next Regular Meeting – July 18, 2023 
 
ADJOURN 

 
American with Disabilities Act Notice:  McCall Legion Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities.  If you need 

assistance, contact City Hall at (208) 634-7142. 



McCall Redevelopment Agency  March 28, 2023 
Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 
Minutes 

March 28, 2023 – 8:00 am 
Legion Hall 

216 E. Park Street, McCall, ID 83638 and Teams Meeting  

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Monty Moore, Colby Nielsen, Mike Maciaszek, Tabitha Martineau and Michelle Rentzsch 
were present. Clair Bowman was absent. City Treasurer Linda Stokes, Economic 
Development Planner Delta James, Consulting Attorney Meghan Conrad, Parks and 
Recreation Director Kurt Wolf and Permit Tech and Addressing Coordinator Rachel 
Santiago-Govier were also present. 

CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) 

 Expenses: Ratification and approval of paid invoices
o Elam and Burke – February 2023

This item had not been received and was removed from the consent agenda.

 Approval of February 28, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes

Member Rentzsch asked to correct the motion to elect “Clair Bowman” to the electrical box 
selection committee. 

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approve the consent agenda with the changes stated to the 
minutes. Member Martineau seconded the motion.  All members voted aye and the motion 
carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

 Review of Financials and Cash Flow Report – City Treasurer Linda Stokes

Treasurer Stokes presented the Cash Flow and Financials. 

 Presentation of FY2022 Audited Financial Statements – The Audit will not be ready
until the next meeting on April 18th.

 Action Item: Accept the FY2022 Audit and authorizing filing with the State
Controller’s Office and other public entities as may be required by Idaho law – This
item will now be at the April 18th meeting.

 Public Comment: 2022 Annual Report

Member Rentzsch made a motion to open the Public Hearing. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

draft



McCall Redevelopment Agency  March 28, 2023 
Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

No written comments were received, and no one was present online or in the room to give 
comment. 

Member Martineau made a motion to close the Public Hearing. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 
. 

 Action Item: Consider Resolution No. 03-2023 approving the 2022 Annual Report,
authorize filing the Annual Report with the City Clerk and the State Controller’s
Office as required by Idaho law, and authorize publication of the legal notice of
filing.

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approve Resolution 03-2023. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion.  All member voted aye and the motion carried. 

 Action Item: Downtown benches and trash receptacles funding requests – Parks &
Recreation Director Kurt Wolf

Mr. Wolf gave a presentation to ask for funding for 6 benches and 1 trash receptacle in the 
downtown core. He showed a few pictures of which benches and receptacles they would like to 
use. These are durable, easy for staff to maintain and hold up well to the weather and heavy 
usage. With regard to invoicing, LOT money for Brown Park items would be kept separate and 
any matching funds from MRA would be utilized in the downtown core. He is getting feedback 
from the business and staff on what numbers of each item they think is needed. 

Ms. Martineau was in full support and stated as a town that sees heavy tourist usage in the 
downtown, benches are very nice for people that want and need to just sit and enjoy the sites or 
people who need to rest. 

Ms. Rentzsch thinks the items Mr. Wolf presented to the Board are fairly priced. 

$21,417 on MRA is on the memo.  

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approve funding for 6 benches and 1 trash receptacle not to 
exceed $22,000 for locations in the Downtown West Tax Allocation District. Member Moore 
seconded the motion.  All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

 Action Item: Approval of Downtown Mural recommended artist Jay Rasgorshek-
Economic Dev. Planner Delta James

The artist selection committee met and chose Jay Rasgorshek. The wall that is currently 
recommended is the West wall of McPaws Thrift Store.  It’s very visible and easily accessible. 
We will also give the artist the opportunity to give input on which wall or walls (as the budget 
allows) they would prefer if they room in their budget for more than one. 

Member Martineau made a motion to approve Mr. Rasgorshek as the artist. Member Rentzsch 
seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

 Volunteer appreciation event reminder RSVP- April 12, 2023
 Legislative Update

draft



McCall Redevelopment Agency    March 28, 2023 
Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

 
Ms. Conrad gave the Legislative update to the board. HB292 is a compromise bill to provide 
property tax relief was being considered. Those funds would be replaced with sales tax. In some 
districts this creates a significant hit.  Our revenue allocation area is less dependent on 
homeowners. The Governor vetoed the bill yesterday. There are some other bills popping up to 
replace portions of the bill that was vetoed. 
 
Urban renewal specific bills related to Data Centers in a RAA like the one in Kuna have been 
proposed. If they qualify for a sales tax exemption, than tax revenue funds cannot be used to 
improve the area they are in. The goal would be to preserve the tool of Urban Renewal. RAI has 
opposed that bill. 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
Next Regular Meeting – TBD hopefully in April for the item related to the Audit for 2022.  
Possibly April 18th. 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Member Rentzsch made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Member Nielsen seconded the motion.  
All members voted aye and the meeting was adjourned at 8:58. 
 

 

draft







TOTAL Remaining

OCT '22 NOV '22 DEC '22 JAN '23 FEB '23 MAR '23 APR '23 MAY '23 JUN '23 JUL '23 AUG '23 SEP '23 YTD Budget

183               -                5,731            168,146        7,309            3,097            -                -                -                -                -                -                184,467    5,533          

403               506               546               620               746               798               873               -                -                -                -                -                4,492        (3,492)         

586 506 6,277 168,766 8,055 3,895 873 2,040.

OCT '22 NOV '22 DEC '22 JAN '23 FEB '23 MAR '23 APR '23 MAY '23 JUN '23 JUL '23 AUG '23 SEP '23
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            -              

586 506 6,277 168,766 8,055 3,895 873 2,041

TOTAL Remaining

OCT '22 NOV '22 DEC '22 JAN '23 FEB '23 MAR '23 APR '23 MAY '23 JUN '23 JUL '23 AUG '23 SEP '23 YTD Budget
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                2,890        17,110          

     Elam & Burke, P.A. 45                   -                  -                  90                   1,485              788                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,408          
     Star News - Public Notice -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  33                   -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  33               
     Redevelopment Association of ID 450                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  450             
Engineering Services -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Insurance 945               -                -                -                -                945               -                -                -                -                -                -                1,889        -                
Bank Charges 14                 199               (30)                (134)              8                   -                -                -                -                -                -                -                57             2,443            
Public Art - Mural - Not to Exceed -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            22,000          

-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            144,611        
2,398 199 -975 -44 1,493 1,765 186,164

OCT '22 NOV '22 DEC '22 JAN '23 FEB '23 MAR '23 APR '23 MAY '23 JUN '23 JUL '23 AUG '23 SEP '23 YTD
230,008 228,196 228,502 235,754 404,564 411,127 413,258 414,131 414,131 414,131 414,131 414,131

586 506 6,277 168,766 8,055 3,895 873 188,959
-2,398 -199 975 44 -1,493 -1,765 -4,836 
-1,812 306 7,252 168,810 6,563 2,131 873 184,123

228,196 228,502 235,754 404,564 411,127 413,258 414,131 414,131 414,131 414,131 414,131 414,131

Cash Received
Cash Spent

Net Cash Flow (Rev over Exp.)
Cash Balance

Cash Flow

Initial Cash Balance

SubTotal Spent on Operations

Additional Cash Received

Cash Received

1- Expenditures from Operations
Professional Services

Reserved for Future Projects

Miscellaneous Revenue

Cash from Operations

2- Additional Cash Received

Cash Received

1- Cash from Operations

Tax Increment

Interest (assumes no rate increases)

Cash Flow
DT W UR Project

Revised 4/12/2023



Help ing  you  succeed ,  f  inanc ia l l y  and  beyond .

Financial 
Statements

City of McCall, Idaho
Includes Supplementary Information 
Year Ended September 30, 2022



 
 
 
Table of Contents  
 
 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report    3 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis    6 
 
Financial Statements 
 
   Government-Wide Financial Statements 
  Statement of Net Position  16
  Statement of Activities  18 
   Fund Financial Statements 
  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds  20 
  Reconciliation of the Government Funds Balance Sheet 
     to the Statement of Net Position 21 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
   Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 22 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,  
      Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities 24 
  Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds  25 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund 
      Net Position – Proprietary Funds 27 
  Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds  28 
   Notes to the Financial Statements  30 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
 Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
    Fund Balances – Budget to Actual: 
   General Fund 50 
    Street / Public Works Fund 51 

Library Fund 52 
Recreation Fund 53 
Airport Fund 54 
Local Option Tax Fund 55 
Debt Service Fund 56 

 Schedule of Employers’ Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 57 
 
Federal Reports 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  
   Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed  
    in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  59 
 Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on  
  Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 61 
 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 63 
 Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 64 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 65 
 Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 66 
 
  
 
 



COEUR D'ALENE MERIDIAN BOISE HARRISCPAS.COMTWIN FALLS BUHL KETCHUM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the City Council 
City of McCall 
McCall, Idaho 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions  
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of McCall, 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise City of McCall’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of McCall, as of September 30, 2022, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of City of McCall and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
City of McCall’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of McCall’s ability to continue as a going concern for 
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.



 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City
of McCall’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about City of McCall’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified 
during the audit.  

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison information and the schedule of employers’ proportionate share of net pension liability 
as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City 
of McCall’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 2023 on our 
consideration of City of McCall’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City 
of McCall’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Meridian, Idaho 
March 31, 2023 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

6 

As management of the City of McCall, Idaho (City) we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities of the City of McCall for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. Please use this 
information in conjunction with the information furnished in the City’s financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of McCall exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources as of September 30, 2022 by $95,231,197 (net position) in comparison to $84,200,88 (net position) as of
September 30, 2021.  Of this amount $24,830,226 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City’s ongoing
obligations to its citizens and creditors.

 During fiscal year 2022 the City’s total Net Position increased $9,363,213. Net Position of the governmental activities
increased $7,447,274 and Net Position of business-type activities increased $1,915,939.

 Total expenses during the year were $17,904,952 compared to total revenues of $26,296,396.

 Fund balance of governmental funds on September 30, 2022 totaled $19,775,690.  Of this amount, $1,040,229 is non-
spendable, $1,494,481 is restricted, $11,977,860 is assigned which represents the remaining fund balance of the special
revenue funds: 1) $1,644,018 Streets / Public Works, 2) $875,302 Airport, 3) $801,224 Library, 4) $(339,567)
Recreation, 5) $78,065 Capital Projects, 6) $4,013,707 Streets Local Option Taxes, and 7) $4,272,266 Debt Service.
The Unassigned portion of fund balance is $5,263,120 which represents the remaining fund balance of the General
Fund and the negative fund balance of Recreation.

 The City has $4,677,235 in long-term debt. In governmental activities debt consists of general obligation bonds and
compensated absences. In business-type activities debt consists of  compensated absences, a drinking water note
payable to the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality,  and capital equipment leases.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of McCall’s basic financial statements, which 
are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to 
the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of McCall’s finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. These statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The current year’s revenues 
and expenses are recorded as transactions occur rather than when cash is received or paid.



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

7 

There are two government-wide statements: 
 

Statement of Net Position 
 
Reports all the City’s assets and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as Net Position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
Statement of Activities 
 
Reports how the City’s Net Position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows 
in future fiscal periods. 

 
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of 
McCall include City administration, community planning and development, public safety, parks and recreation, library, 
airport, public works and streets, and local option tax. The business-type activities of the City include the golf course and 
water system.  
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of McCall itself (known as the primary government), but 
also the McCall Redevelopment Agency, a legally separate entity, and a component unit of the City. Financial information for 
the component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The Fund financial statements provide information about the City’s major funds, not the City as a whole. A fund is a 
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities 
or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. Funds may be required by law or may be established by the City Council. All the 
funds of the City of McCall can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund 
financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between the 
two. 
 



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

8 

The City maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the 
general, airport, street / public works, recreation, library, and local option tax fund. These are considered major funds. Data 
from the other non-major fund (capital projects) is also included. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City of McCall only has one type of propriety fund, the enterprise fund, which is used to report the same functions 
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Information is presented separately in the 
Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position and the Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Fund Net Position for the golf and water funds, which are considered major funds.   
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is necessary to fully understand the data presented in the government-wide and 
fund financial statements.    
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain other required and 
non-required supplementary information. Budget to actual comparisons are presented as required supplementary information 
for the General Fund, the Street / Public Works Fund, the Airport Fund, the Recreation Fund, the Library Fund, and the 
Local Option Tax Fund. 
 
Two additional schedules are included as required supplementary information. The Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net 
Pension Liability – PERSI and the Schedule of Employer Contributions are included as required by Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68. 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

9 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Net Position 
 
Net Position measures the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources (what the City owns) and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources (what the City owes).  The City’s combined assets and deferred outflows of resources 
exceed liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $102,912,895 in 2022. The largest portion of the City’s Net Position, 
74%, is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.  Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, machinery, and 
infrastructure.  Unrestricted Net Position equals 24% of total Net Position. 
 
The condensed Statements of Net Position for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 are presented in the table 
below. 
 

Primary Government

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Current and Other Assets 32,573,671$ 28,736,615$ 9,165,792$   7,505,434$   41,739,463$   36,242,049$   
Capital Assets 60,577,799   54,194,303   21,210,123   21,733,278   81,787,922     75,927,581     

       Total Assets 93,151,470   82,930,918   30,375,915   29,238,712   123,527,385   112,169,630   
Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,079,727     1,269,970     393,195        183,085        2,472,922       1,453,055       
       Total Assets and Deferred

           Outflows of Resources 95,231,197   84,200,888   30,769,110   29,421,797   126,000,307   113,622,685   

Current Liabilities 4,938,401     2,841,964     675,712        1,236,875     5,614,113       4,078,839       
Long-term Liabilities 8,209,971     4,290,763     1,269,909     921,174        9,479,880       5,211,937       

       Total Liabilities 13,148,372   7,132,727     1,945,621     2,158,049     15,093,993     9,290,776       
Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,977,862     10,410,472   15,557          371,755        7,993,419       10,782,227     
       Total Liabilities and Deferred

           Inflows of Resources 21,126,234   17,543,199   1,961,178     2,529,804     23,087,412     20,073,003     

Net Position
Net investment in Capital Assets 56,163,552$ 49,914,868$ 20,424,636$ 20,559,879$ 76,588,188$   70,474,747$   
Restricted 1,494,481     2,637,485     1,494,481       2,637,485       
Unrestricted 16,446,930   14,105,336   8,383,296     6,332,114     24,830,226     20,437,450     

       Total Net Position 74,104,963   66,657,689   28,807,932   26,891,993   102,912,895   93,549,682     
95,231,197$ 84,200,888$ 30,769,110$ 29,421,797$ 126,000,307$ 113,622,685$ 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government

 



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

10 

Changes in Net Position 
 
The following condensed financial information as presented in the table below was derived from the government-wide 
Statements of Activities for years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021. During the year the City’s financial position increased 
by $9,363,213. 
 

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Revenues
Program Revenues
  Charges for services 1,703,587$   1,616,498$   5,307,494$   5,276,814$   7,011,081$     6,893,312$     
  Operating grants and contributions 749,075        1,060,325     749,075          1,060,325       
  Capital grants and contributions 1,859,519     2,549,848     1,859,519       2,549,848       
General revenue:
  Property  taxes 7,270,839     6,283,399     7,270,839       6,283,399       
  Franchise fees 326,454        331,681        326,454          331,681          
  Sales tax and other governmental 5,094,883     4,869,815     5,094,883       4,869,815       
  Pension revenue -                    415,807        -                      415,807          
Unrestricted investment earnings 134,816        24,656          43,851          11,490          178,667          36,146            
Other revenue 288,322        104,518        81,560          2,432            369,882          106,950          
Total Revenues 17,427,495   17,256,547   5,432,905     5,290,736     22,860,400     22,547,283     

Expenses
General Government
 Government Administration 3,001,006     2,329,305     3,001,006       2,329,305       
  Public Safety 1,856,726     1,890,562     1,856,726       1,890,562       
  Parks and Recreation 4,770,011     1,291,760     4,770,011       1,291,760       
  Community Services 1,096,658     1,331,443     1,096,658       1,331,443       
  Library 360,447        360,547        360,447          360,547          
  Airport 609,386        611,313        609,386          611,313          
  Local Option Tax 86,205          182,334        86,205            182,334          
  Streets/Public Works 2,722,753     2,491,116     2,722,753       2,491,116       
Enterprise - Golf and Water 3,401,760     2,833,083     3,401,760       2,833,083       
Total Expenses 14,503,192   10,488,380   3,401,760     2,833,083     17,904,952     13,321,463     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures before transfers 2,924,303     6,768,167     2,031,145     2,457,653     4,955,448       9,225,820       

Transfers - internal activities 1,168,535     1,232,587     (115,206)       (76,850)         1,053,329       1,155,737       

Change in Net Position 4,092,838     8,000,754     1,915,939     2,380,803     6,008,777       10,381,557     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 66,657,689   58,656,935   26,891,993   24,511,190   93,549,682     83,168,125     
Net Position, End of Year 70,750,527$ 66,657,689$ 28,807,932$ 26,891,993$ 99,558,459$   93,549,682$   

Primary Government

 
 
 
 



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

11 

Governmental Activities 

The City of McCall experienced the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020. The City enacted a mask mandate in June 
of 2020 and lifted it in May 2021. The City received the first tranche of federal State Local Financial Relief funds from the State of 
Idaho in 2021 in the amount of $386,850 and received the second tranche in the same amount in summer 2022. The City claimed 
the funds under the “revenue replacement “ category allowed by US Treasury rules. The City Council will appropriate the funds to 
qualifying uses in future budget years.  

2022 was a year dedicated to improving McCall for today’s residents, businesses, and visitors as well as planning for our 
future. With prudent financial planning and leveraging federal, state, and private funding sources we were able to accomplish 
many important projects for the community we serve. The City Council took important steps to address their number one 
priority - our local housing shortage due to the lack of long-term rental units and homes for sale at price points affordable for 
local wages. Council adopted a Housing Action Plan developed by a community steering committee with 27 strategies to 
implement over 5 years. The Plan received a National APA award for rural communities and an Idaho Gem award. The 
Council established a new Housing Authority, accepted a donated housing unit for worker housing, and dedicated over 
$400,000 of 2022 lodging taxes to the housing program. To improve residential neighborhood quality, Council adopted new 
laws regulating short-term rentals to reduce their impacts on neighbors and provide for the safety of guests.  

The McCall Senior Center building, owned by the city, was renovated for energy efficiency and ADA standards. A 20-year 
master plan for the airport was adopted that lays out improvements to continue McCall’s reputation as the gateway to the 
Idaho backcountry and as the strategic airbase location for U.S. Forest Service wildfire response. The 20-year Parks, 
Recreation, and Open Space planning effort commenced in 2022. A Waterways Management Plan, with new regulations for 
Big Payette Lake our sole drinking water source, was written in collaboration with the County and is anticipated to be 
implemented in 2023.  

The major renovation of Brown Park, thanks to the McCall Urban Renewal Agency, created a beautiful, playful lakeside 
public park on the site of a former timber mill that highlights our timber past along with our outdoor recreation present. This 
was the last project of the now-terminated Lakefront urban renewal area. Now the Urban Renewal Agency is focused on 
projects in the Downtown urban renewal area.  

Ground was broken on the construction of the library expansion project thanks to the voter-approved bonds issued by the 
city in fall 2021. Construction on the library will continue through 2023 with completion anticipated in 2024 due to our 
weather-related short construction season. A new debt service fund was established for the project’s bonds. 

To start the library expansion project, the Parks and Recreation department had to be moved from their old facility next door 
to the library which was razed to accommodate the footprint of the new library. The City Council approved an interest-free 
5-year loan of $1 Million from the General Fund to the Recreation Fund to construct a new facility for the Parks
maintenance department with $200k repayments each year using Tourism Local Option Taxes (lodging taxes) to replenish
the General Fund. 2022 was the first year of the loan and the first repayment. Please see Note J which identifies a deficit in
the Recreation Fund. The deficit reflects the liability owed to the General Fund for this loan and it is expected the Recreation
Fund will return to a positive fund balance upon full repayment of the loan in 2026.

In 10 years, our population has increased 32% and our visitor numbers have likewise skyrocketed with the corresponding 
growth in population in the Boise area. As a result, there are impacts to our area’s infrastructure that will need to be 
addressed in the future. The community’s wastewater system, which is owned by a special service district, needs collection 
system upgrades. The city will embark on drinking water system capacity upgrades per our 20-year master plan. Our regional 
Fire/EMS responders need more equipment and personnel to ensure adequate response times to new development. And the 
region needs substantial fiber infrastructure upgrades for our better access to the internet. We are working with our 
intergovernmental partners at the Sewer District, Fire District, Economic Development Council, County and State to tackle 
these challenges and ensure McCall is a high quality, vibrant, healthy, affordable, and sustainable community.  



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

12 

The McCall area saw strong real property value growth in 2022 due to high demand for second homes and vacation  rental 
investment property by out of the area purchasers. Rising mortgage interest rates and inflation in 2022 caused real estate sales to 
slow with very little inventory on the market by the end of 2022. Prices appear to have stabilized but reductions in price have not 
yet occurred. 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
The Water Utility continues to see an increase in the number of new connections for service and increased overall demand for 
water. In summer 2022 the City Council received an updated engineering study of the Water System Master Plan along with an 
updated rate study to ensure appropriate treatment capacity is maintained and funded. The Council adopted revisions to the tiered 
rate structure to further incentivize water conservation and the city continued its educational campaign to encourage water 
conservation. 
 
The Golf Course continues to receive a subsidy from the general fund to help cover personnel costs, assist with capital 
improvements, and to plow cart paths in the winter to provide the general public a free recreational resource. The contract 
for Golf Pro services to run the Pro Shop and tournaments ended in October 2022. The City brought those services in-house 
in order to more efficiently run the course and to generate revenues for investment into capital projects identified in the 2020 
Golf Course Asset Management Plan. The Plan identifies priorities for upgrades of the infrastructure, such as irrigation 
systems, along with course improvements to keep the public course playable and accessible for all types. The first projects 
will be constructed in 2023. The new management model is intended to reduce the general fund subsidy of the course over 
time. 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
General Fund 
 
The general fund is the principal fund used for the City’s major operations.  The fund balance as of September 30, 2022 was 
$8,429,975, an increase of 7.72% over the fund balance at the end of the prior fiscal year. The City’s conservative spending 
continues to keep expenditures at or below budget. Fund balance is primarily used to fund one-time expenditures and to 
fund the City’s five (5) year Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights  
 
General Fund 
 
As part of the budget, Council adopts both contingent revenue and expense amounts to allow for the receipt and expenditure 
of small amounts of unexpected revenues without a formal budget amendment.  Throughout the year, several unexpected 
grants, donations, and other miscellaneous revenues were received.  City Council approved budget line-item transfers from 
contingency line items to the appropriate revenue and expense accounts. These transfers do not change the original adopted 
budget for the funds.  



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

13 

The City of McCall funds a large portion of its Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the governmental funds 
through the General Fund. Tax dollars reserved for capital expenditures in the General Fund are internally transferred to the 
Street / Public Works Fund, Airport Fund, Recreation Fund, Library Fund, and Golf Fund as needed per the CIP and 
project completion. Funds are retained within the General Fund until expenditures are incurred, and / or the project is 
completed. The City is constantly looking for ways to leverage limited city funding by actively seeking out grant and potential 
cost-sharing opportunities.  
 
The Tourism Local Option Tax (LOT) generated $1,079,886, a modest increase in revenue of 5.68% as compared to 
$1,018,512 in 2021. During 2022 $687,953 for internal programs and $391,933 externally for programs and non-profit 
groups. The programs and non-profit groups recommended for funding by the LOT Commission and approved by Council 
in 2022 include the following; 1) McCall Area Chamber of Commerce, 2) Valley County Recreation, 3) Payette Lakes Ski 
Club, 4) Valley County Pathways, 5) Treasure Valley Transit, 6) Payette Lakes Community Association, 7) Manchester Ice 
and Event Center, 8) Central Idaho Historical Museum, 9)Courageous Kids Climbing, 10) Roots Forest School, Inc., 
11)McCall Music Society, 13) Valley County Search and Rescue, 14)McCall Senior Center, 15) Payette Avalanche Center, 16) 
Little League West Central Idaho, 17) Payette Riverwalk Alliance Inc., 18) Seven Devils New Plan Foundry, 19) McCall Ultra 
Sed Dog Challenge, 20) West Centra Mountains Housing Trust, 21) Wilderness Science Education, and 22) Payette Land 
Trust. The LOT Commission also recommended funding the following City programs and projects: 1) Administrative Costs, 
2) Winter Sidewalk Snow Removal, 3) Local Housing Initiatives, 4) Noxious Weed Program, 5) McCall Public Library 
Building Expansion project, 6) Outdoor Ice Rink / Movie Nights, 7) Repave Golf Cart Paths, and 8) Parks and Recreation 
Move. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At the end of 2022 the City had $81,787,922 invested in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation), compared to 
$75,927,581  at the end of 2021.  Additional information can be found in Note C of the financial statements. 
 

 

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

Land 9,997,579$   1,142,320$   11,139,899$   

Buildings and Improvements 1,585,443     5,400,852     6,986,295       

Infrastructure 11,766,488   11,766,488     

Improvements Other

  Than Buildings 12,506,171   13,107,291   25,613,462     

Equipment 1,198,119     561,733        1,759,852       

Construction in Progress 23,216,984   933,277        24,150,261     

Right of Use Lease Equipment 307,015        64,650          371,665          

Total 60,577,799$ 21,210,123$ 81,787,922$   

(net of depreciation)

Capital Assets as of September 30, 2022

 
 
The City recorded current year depreciation of $5,264,373 in governmental activities and $1,068,918 in business-type 
activities. 



CITY OF MCCALL 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

 

14 

Long-Term Debt 
 
Business-type activity outstanding debt includes $725,914 in a note payable to the Idaho Department of Environmental 
Quality. Governmental Activity outstanding debt includes $3,595,000 in General Obligation bonds issued in 2021 for the 
Library Expansion Project. Detailed information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note H of the financial 
statements. 
 
FY22 Budgetary Considerations 
 
The FY23 budget maintains the current level of services in all program areas. Recruitment of key positions has been 
challenging due to our wage levels and high cost of housing in our area. The FY23 budget included pay scale adjustments for 
public works positions in order to hire and retain snowplow operators prior to the winter season. McCall receives an average 
of 135 inches of snow each winter and plow operations are critical for school buses, hospital, and emergency services. The 
winter of 2022-23 brought over 200 inches of snow, the most in 13 years, further justifying the need for personnel and 
equipment. The FY23 budget includes completion of several capital projects started in FY22 such as implementation of the 
City’s campus site improvements including rehabilitation of the Senior Center using a CDBG grant, pathway improvements, 
Brown Park Improvements, and continued emphasis on pavement rehabilitation in the Governmental Funds.  
 
In the Enterprise funds the 2023 budget includes continued water line replacement, implementation of the watermaster plan 
and the fourth annual water utility rate increase. In the Airport Fund the City is moving forward with rehabilitating runways 
and the remaining apron pavement using FAA grant funds. Sales taxes and lodging taxes continue at their record high 
collections but have plateaued. The city continues to budget conservatively for the use of these taxes as they are dependent 
on the visitor economy and can fluctuate.  
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of McCall’s finances for our citizens and customers.  If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Office: 216 East Park Street, 
McCall, Idaho 83638, (208) 634-2103. 
.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Component
Units

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Investments 19,558,752$           8,179,269$            27,738,021$           242,488$            
Receivables

Accounts 579,873 579,873 
Property tax 7,598,847 7,598,847 265,860
Due from other governments 349,294 40,000 389,294 
Grants 670,868 670,868 
Other 712,706 23,667 736,373 1,963

Due from other funds 848,184 848,184 
Prepaid expenses 192,046 342,983 535,029 

         Total Current Assets 29,930,697 9,165,792 39,096,489 510,311              

Noncurrent Assets
   Restricted cash 2,642,974 2,642,974 
   Capital assets, net of accumulated 
     depreciation 60,577,799 21,210,123 81,787,922 

         Total Noncurrent Assets 63,220,773 21,210,123 84,430,896 

Total Assets 93,151,470 30,375,915 123,527,385           510,311              

Deferred Outflows
   Pension obligations 2,079,727 393,195 2,472,922 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 95,231,197$           30,769,110$           126,000,307$         510,311$            

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO

Primary Government

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
16



Component
Units

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,197,670$            280,224$               2,477,894$            685$  
Accrued expenses 312,194 24,207 336,401 
Due to other funds 865,995 865,995 22,189
Advanced revenue 1,427,542 1,427,542 
Due Within One Year

Bonds payable 135,000 135,000 
Notes payable 371,281 371,281 

Total Current Liabilities 4,938,401 675,712 5,614,113 22,874 

Noncurrent Liabilities
Due in More Than One Year

Accrued compensated absences 205,005 151,316 356,321 
Deferred bond premium amortization 515,519 515,519 
Lease liability 303,728 59,573 363,301 
Bonds payable 3,460,000 3,460,000 
Notes payable 354,633 354,633 
Net pension liability 3,725,719 704,387 4,430,106 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,209,971 1,269,909 9,479,880 

            Total Liabilities 13,148,372 1,945,621 15,093,993 22,874 

Deferred Inflows
Deferred tax revenue 7,480,486 7,480,486 264,743
Split interest 415,092 415,092 
Pensions 82,284 15,557 97,841 

            Total Deferred Inflows 7,977,862 15,557 7,993,419 264,743              

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 56,163,552 20,424,636 76,588,188 
Unrestricted 16,446,930 8,383,296 24,830,226 
Restricted 1,494,481 1,494,481 222,694              

            Total Net Position 74,104,963 28,807,932 102,912,895           222,694              

Total 95,231,197$           30,769,110$           126,000,307$         510,311$            

Primary Government

September 30, 2022

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
17



Component
Fees, Fines & Operating Capital Units
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Total
Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities
General government 3,001,006$         79,505$           $ $ (2,921,501)$           $ (2,921,501)$        $
Public saftey 1,856,726           34,757             9,469             (1,812,500)             (1,812,500)         
Parks and recreation 4,770,011           51,965             81,720            (4,636,326)             (4,636,326)         
Community Services 1,096,658           1,125,236         313,833          342,411 342,411             
Library 360,447              11,504             41,811            (307,132) (307,132)            
Airport 609,386              335,696           (273,690) (273,690)            
Local option tax 86,205 125,152          1,859,519         1,898,466              1,898,466           
Street/public works 2,722,753           64,924             177,090          (2,480,739)              (2,480,739)         

          Total Governmental Activities 14,503,192         1,703,587         749,075          1,859,519         (10,191,011)           (10,191,011)       

   Business-Type Activities
      Water 2,373,896           3,659,027         1,285,131          1,285,131           
      Golf course 1,027,864           1,090,198         62,334               62,334               

         Total Business-Type Activities 3,401,760           4,749,225          1,347,465          1,347,465           

            Total Primary Government 17,904,952         6,452,812         749,075          1,859,519         (10,191,011)           1,347,465          (8,843,546)         

Component Units
      Urban Renewal Agency 353,500              (353,500)             

PROGRAM REVENUES CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND

Primary Government

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
 18



Component
Units

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Total

Net (Expense) Revneue and Changes in Net Position  (Continued) (10,191,011)           1,347,465          (8,843,546)         (353,500)             

General Revenues and Transfers
   Property taxes 7,270,839              7,270,839           164,424
   Sales taxes 4,089,195              4,089,195           
   Revenue sharing 1,005,688              1,005,688           
   Earnings on investments 134,816 43,851               178,667             1,532
   Miscellaneous 288,322 81,560               369,882             300 
   Water and franchise fees 326,454 558,269             884,723             
   Transfer of assets from MURA 3,354,436              3,354,436           
   Net operating transfers 1,168,535              (115,206)            1,053,329           (1,053,329)          

         Total General Revenues and Transfers 17,638,285            568,474             18,206,759         (887,073)             

Change in Net Position 7,447,274              1,915,939          9,363,213           (1,240,573)          

Net Position
Beginning of Year 66,657,689            26,891,993        93,549,682         1,463,267           

End of Year 74,104,963$           28,807,932$       102,912,895$     222,694$            

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Primary Government

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
 19



NON-MAJOR
FUNDS TOTAL

Street /Public Local Option Debt Capital
General Works Library Recreation Airport Tax Service Projects

ASSETS

Cash and investments 6,400,468$     1,620,978$   1,486,311$   593,204$      723,510$      4,390,403$   4,266,047$   77,831$            19,558,752$   
Restricted cash and investments 2,226,386 416,588 2,642,974       
Receivables

Property taxes 4,247,625 2,082,485 552,076       372,641 84,350         259,670 7,598,847       
Intergovernmental 244,401 44,725 60,168 349,294         
Grants 316,025 59,756 203,323 91,764 670,868         
Due from other funds 800,000 48,183 1 848,184         
Other receivables 307,658 22,522 637 360 8,029 365,454 7,813 233 712,706         

Prepaid expenses 24,565           146,481       21,000         192,046         

            Total Assets 14,567,128$   3,917,191$   2,455,612$   1,095,144$   1,079,380$   4,847,621$   4,533,530$   78,065$            32,573,671$   

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable 895,815$        137,599$      267,890$      210,608$      104,289$      579,969$      1,500$         $ 2,197,670$     
Accrued expense 174,498 58,378 19,639 45,130 10,604 3,945 312,194         
Due to other funds 65,995 800,000 865,995         
Advanced revenue 764,156         401,089       7,286           5,011           250,000       1,427,542       

         Total Liabilities 1,900,464       195,977       688,618       1,063,024     119,904       833,914       1,500 0 4,803,401       

Deferred Inflows
Unavailable revenue 4,236,689       2,077,196 550,678 371,687 84,174 259,064 7,579,488       
Irrevocable split-interest agreement 415,092 415,092         

Fund Balances
Nonspendable 824,565         146,481       69,183         1,040,229       
Restricted 1,449,756       44,725         1,494,481       
Assigned 483,784         1,452,812     801,224       875,302       4,013,707     4,272,966     78,065              11,977,860     
Unassigned 5,671,870       (408,750)       5,263,120       

Total Fund Balances 8,429,975       1,644,018     801,224       (339,567)      875,302       4,013,707     4,272,966     78,065              19,775,690     

Total 14,567,128$   3,917,191$   2,455,612$   1,095,144$   1,079,380$   4,847,621$   4,533,530$   78,065$            32,573,671$   

MAJOR FUNDS

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
20



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total fund balance - total governmental funds 19,775,690$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. These
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, consist of:

Land 9,997,579$           
Buildings 3,911,867             
Improvements other than buildings 47,305,010           
Equipment 5,455,565             
Construction in progress 23,216,984           
Right of use asset 424,203 
Accumulated depreciation (29,733,409)          

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 60,577,799 

Some of the City's taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not
available soon enough to pay the current period's expenditures, and
therefore are reported as advanced revenue in the funds. 99,002 

Long-term liabilities, applicable to governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as fund liabilities.  These liabilities consist of:

Net pension liability (3,725,719)$          
Pension related deferred inflows (82,284) 
Pension related deferred outflows 2,079,727             

Total long term liabilities (1,728,276)             

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued leave,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as fund liabilities.  These liabilities consist of:

Deferred bond premium amortization (515,519)$             
Bonds payable (3,595,000)            
Lease liability (303,728) 
Compensated absences payable (205,005) 

Total long term liabilities (4,619,252)             

Total net position of governmental activities 74,104,963$           

September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
21



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

NON-MAJOR
FUNDS TOTAL

Street /Public Local Option Debt Capital
General Works Library Recreation Airport Tax Service Projects

Revenues
Property taxes 4,202,875$      1,738,327$        668,641$      308,173$     78,330$       $ 273,936$      $ 7,270,282$     
Local option taxes 601,878 85,665 370,499 3,031,153 4,089,195       
Intergovernmental 1,328,990 177,090 41,811 81,720 1,859,519 125,152 3,614,282       
Licenses, permits, and fees 712,552 335,696 1,048,248       
Charges for services 819,483 64,924 11,504 51,965         947,876 
Refunds and reimbursements 70,000 70,000           
Fines 34,757 34,757           
Interest 67,362 9,324 114 4,802 22,183 29,826 1,205 134,816 
Miscellaneous 20,863            116,690             18,393         25,674         11,052         95,152            498              288,322 

Total Revenues 7,858,760       2,106,355          826,014       838,145       2,289,399     3,273,640        304,260       1,205 17,497,778     

Expendiures
Current

General government 1,992,030 1,500 1,993,530
Public protection 1,813,312 1,813,312       
City clerk 313,376 313,376 
Community Services 1,091,558 357,106 1,448,664       
Streets 1,773,648 1,773,648       
Airport 263,101       263,101 
Recreation 1,175,214    1,175,214       
Local option tax 86,205 86,205           

Debt service
Principal 120,000 120,000 
Interest 119,756 119,756 

Capital outlay 1,021,072       410,852             658,012       2,221,642    2,098,408     1,030,559        7,440,545       

Total Expenditures 6,231,348       2,184,500          1,015,118     3,396,856    2,361,509     1,116,764        241,256       16,547,351     

MAJOR FUNDS

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
22



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

NON-MAJOR
FUNDS TOTAL

Street /Public Local Option Debt Capital
General Works Library Recreation Airport Tax Service Projects

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 1,627,412       (78,145) (189,104)      (2,558,711)   (72,110)        2,156,876        63,004         1,205 950,427 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
   Transfers in (out) (976,273)         117,453             (36,753)        1,701,235    (65,812)        739,850 

            Net Change in Fund Balances 651,139          39,308               (225,857)      (857,476)      (137,922)      2,156,876        63,004         1,205 1,690,277       

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 7,778,836       1,604,710          1,027,081     517,909       1,013,224     1,856,831        4,209,962     76,860              18,085,413     

Fund Balances, End of Year 8,429,975$      1,644,018$        801,224$      (339,567)$    875,302$      4,013,707$      4,272,966$   78,065$            19,775,690$   

MAJOR FUNDS

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
23



EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,690,277$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
 are different because:

Revenues that will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal
 year end are not considered "available" revenues and are deferred in the
 governmental funds. Advanced revenues increased by this amount this year. 557 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
 statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their
 estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period,
 these amounts are:

Capital outlay 7,440,545$        
Right of use asset 424,203             
Transfer from MURA 3,783,121          
Depreciation expense (5,264,373)         

   Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 6,383,496             

In governmental funds, bonds are considered a source of financing,
 but in the statement of net assets, the lease obligation is reported as a 
 liability. Similarly, lease payments are recorded as expenditures rather than
 reductions of a liability

Lease liability payments (303,728)$          
Bond payments 120,000             
Bond amortization 48,916               

(134,812) 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental
 funds, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not
 normally paid with expendable financial resources. In the statement of 
 activities, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities
 are reported regardless of financial resource availability.

Change in pension revenue (498,125)$          
Decrease in compensated absence payable 5,881 

(492,244) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 7,447,274$           

CITY OF MCALL, IDAHO
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
24



Golf
Water Course
Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,825,234$             1,354,035$             8,179,269$             
Receivables                              

Accounts 579,873 579,873                 
Due from other funds                              40,000 40,000                   
Other 23,667                   23,667                   

Prepaid expenses 342,983                                              342,983                 

Total Current Assets 7,748,090              1,417,702              9,165,792              

Non-current Assets
Capital Assets

Construction in progress 881,913 51,364 933,277
Land 562,326 579,994                 1,142,320              
Buildings 12,049,935 952,595 13,002,530             
Equipment 900,911 488,637 1,389,548              
Improvements other than buildings 20,706,457 3,974,700 24,681,157             
Right of Use Asset - Leases 116,369 116,369                 
Less accumulated depreciation (16,300,925)            (3,754,153)             (20,055,078)            

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 18,800,617             2,409,506              21,210,123             

Total Assets 26,548,707             3,827,208              30,375,915             

Deferred outflows
Pension related items 269,549                 123,646                 393,195                 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 26,818,256$           3,950,854$             30,769,110$           

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO

September 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
25



Golf
Water Course
Fund Fund Total

LIABILITIES

Current Liabiliies
Accounts payable 248,670$               31,554$  280,224$               
Accrued interest payable 6,352 1,285 7,637 
Accrued compensated balances 95,337 55,979 151,316 
Other accrued expenses 11,570 5,000 16,570 
Current portion of notes payable 347,908 23,373 371,281 

Total Current Liabilities 709,837 117,191 827,028 

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term portion of notes payable 354,633 354,633 
Lease liability 59,573 59,573 
Net pension liability 482,882 221,505 704,387 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 837,515 281,078 1,118,593              

Total Liabilities 1,547,352 398,269 1,945,621 

Deferred Inflows
Pension related items 10,665 4,892 15,557 

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets 18,098,076             2,326,560 20,424,636             
Restricted
Unrestricted 7,162,163 1,221,133 8,383,296 

Total Net Position 25,260,239             3,547,693              28,807,932             

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position 26,818,256$           3,950,854$             30,769,110$           

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
26



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Water Golf Course
Fund Fund Total

Operating Revenues
Charges for services 3,659,027$             1,059,504$             4,718,531$             
Other income 30,694 30,694 

Total Operating Revenues 3,659,027 1,090,198 4,749,225 

Operating Expenses
Salaries 442,086 392,848 834,934 
Fringe benefits 363,937 44,209 408,146 
Professional fees 267,734 46,333 314,067 
Utilities and telephone 142,256 57,118 199,374 
Maintenance and operations 228,134 161,554 389,688 
Supplies 70,854 97,773 168,627 
Depreciation 842,723 226,195 1,068,918 

Total Operating Expenses 2,357,724 1,026,030 3,383,754 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,301,303 64,168 1,365,471 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest revenues 37,383 6,468 43,851 
Private contributions 44,197 44,197 
Interest expense (16,172) (1,834) (18,006) 
Water hook-on fees 558,269 558,269 
Miscellaneous income (expense) 37,363 37,363 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 616,843 48,831 665,674 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 1,918,146 112,999 2,031,145 

Operating Transfers In (Out)
Transfers in 320,443 320,443 
Transfers out (363,779) (71,870) (435,649) 

Total Operating Transfers In (Out) (363,779) 248,573 (115,206) 

Change in Net Position 1,554,367 361,572 1,915,939 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 23,705,872             3,186,121 26,891,993             

Net Position, End of Year 25,260,239$           3,547,693$             28,807,932$           

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
27



Golf
Water Course
Fund Fund Total

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
   Cash received from customers 3,616,783$             1,080,748$             4,697,531$             
   Cash payments to suppliers for goods (1,335,064) (647,997) (1,983,061) 
   Cash payments to employees for services (674,920) (389,337) (1,064,257) 

      Net Cash Provided By (Used in) 
         Operating Activities 1,606,799 43,414 1,650,213 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 
   Operating transfers (363,779) 221,073 (142,706) 
   Other non-operating income (loss) 595,632 44,197 639,829 

      Net Cash Provided By
        Noncapital Financing Activities 231,853 265,270 497,123 

Cash Flow From Capital and Related 
  Financing Activities
   Acquisition of capital assets (363,965) (117,148) (481,113) 
   New long-term borrowings
   Principal payments on long-term debt (340,657) (21,828) (362,485) 
   Interest payments on long-term debt (16,172) (1,834) (18,006) 

      Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
        Financing Activities (720,794) (140,810) (861,604) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
   Interest on investments 37,383 6,468 43,851 

        Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,155,241 174,342 1,329,583 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 5,669,993 1,179,693 6,849,686 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 6,825,234$             1,354,035$             8,179,269$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
28



Golf
Water Course
Fund Fund Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) To
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

   Operating Income (Loss) 1,301,303$             64,168$                 1,365,471$             
   Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 
    (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 
    Operating Activities
      Depreciation 842,723 226,195                 1,068,918              
      Deferred Outflows (153,305)                (56,805)                  (210,110)                
      Deferred Inflows (225,370)                (130,828)                (356,198)                
      Change in Assets and Liabilities:
        (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (42,244)                                           (42,244)                  
        (Increase) decrease in prepaid expense (254,181)                2,600                     (251,581)                
        (Increase) decrease in other receivables (9,450)                    (9,450)                    
        Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (366,943)                (196,373)                (563,316)                
        Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 490,164                 225,692                 715,856                 
        Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (4,962)                    (91,446)                  (96,408)                  
        Increase (decrease) in absence payable 19,614                   9,661                     29,275                   

            Net Cash Provided By (Used in) 
             Operating Activities 1,606,799$             43,414$                 1,650,213$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
29



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

30 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
General Statement 
 
City of McCall, Idaho (the City) was incorporated July 19, 1911. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of 
government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police), parks and recreations, 
community services, streets and general administrative services.  
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City of McCall (the City) and its single component 
unit, the Urban Renewal Agency (URA). In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all 
potential component units (traditionally separate reporting entities) for which the City may be financially accountable 
and, as such, should be included within the City’s financial statements. The City (the primary government) is financially 
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on 
the organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific 
financial burdens on the City. Organizations for which the City is not financially accountable are also included when 
doing so is necessary in order to prevent the City’s financial statements from being misleading. 
 
The financial statements are formatted to allow the user to clearly distinguish between the primary government and its 
component unit. The URA has been discretely presented.  
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the governmental entity. For most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities (government funds) which normally 
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from business-type activities (proprietary funds) 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given program are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include (1) fees, fines, 
and charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given program and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government’s water and sewer 
function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Fund Financial Statements: The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order 
to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and 
proprietary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements: all 
non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 
 
 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

31 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The measurement 
focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources. The City has presented the 
following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the City, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
Street/Public Works Fund is used to account for the operation of the street maintenance department. Financing is 
provided by state gasoline and sales taxes as well as property taxes. State law and city ordinance require that these 
revenues be used to maintain roads and streets.  
 
Airport Fund is used to account for the operation of the City’s local airport. Financing is provided through property 
taxes, charges for services and state and federal grants.  
 
Recreation Fund is used to account for operation of City recreation programs. Financing is provided by a specific 
annual property tax levy to the extent miscellaneous revenues are not sufficient to provide such financing. City 
ordinance restricts these property taxes to financing of recreation programs. 

 
Library Fund is used to account for the operation of the public library. Financing is provided principally through 
property taxes which are restricted for library operations by City ordinance.  

   
  Local Option Tax Fund is used to account for the operation of the City’s Local Option Tax over tourism. 
   
  Debt Service Fund is used to account for the bonds issued for the library during the fiscal year.  
 
Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
The accounting objectives are a determination of net income, financial position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are 
included on the Statement of Net Position. The City has presented the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Golf Course Fund is used to account for the revenues and costs necessary to operate the City’s golf course.  
 
The Water Fund is used to account for the revenues and costs necessary to operate the City’s water system. 
 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 
ongoing operations. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of personnel and contractual services, 
supplies, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. 
 
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting  
 
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

32 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. The economic resources measurement focus 
means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and are accounted for 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current 
period. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the government also are recognized as revenue. All 
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 
 
Delinquent property taxes and property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of the end of the fiscal year, 
have been recorded as deferred inflows. Receivables that will not be collected within the available period have also been 
reported as deferred inflows on the government fund financial statements. 
 
Accounting Pronouncements Adopted 
 
In 2022, City of McCall adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Issued June 2017 to better meet the informational needs 
of financial statement users by improving account and financial reporting for leases by governments and increases the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  
 
Budgetary Control 
 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with state code and generally accepted accounting principles for all 
governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal yearend. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all 
capital projects funds. Annual operating budgets are adopted for proprietary funds.  
 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:  
 

1. Prior to September 1, the City Council and City Manager prepare a proposed operating budget for the fiscal 
year commencing on October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them.  

2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.  
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an appropriation ordinance.  

 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Budgetary Control (Continued) 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the general, special revenue, 
capital projects and debt service funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The City Manager is authorized 
to transfer budget amounts within departments and between departments within any fund. Revisions that alter the total
expenditure appropriation of any fund must be approved by the City Council. State law does not allow fund 
expenditures to exceed fund appropriations.  

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all funds. 

Cash and Investments 

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

State statute authorizes the government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate bonds, 
repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool. Investments for the government are reported at fair 
value. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Prepaid balances are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the subsequent 
year, and the reserve for prepaid expenses has been recorded to signify that a portion of fund balance is not available for 
other subsequent expenditures. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year 
are referred to as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements. 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute 
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are 
recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is 
reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 
Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent transfers of resources are reported as fund balance transfers. All other interfund 
transfers are reported as operating transfers. These transfers offset each other and are not a part of the government-wide 
financial statements unless between business-type (enterprise) funds and governmental funds.  

Non-tax receivables are recognized as revenues received from the State and Federal governments if designated for the 
current fiscal period. 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

34 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar 
items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the 
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
construction. 

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Assets Years

Buildings 12-40
Improvements other than buildings 10-50
Equipment and vehicles 5-10

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are 
accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the City are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick leave and personal days off (comp time), depending on job 
classification, length of service and other factors. All vacation and personal days off are accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. Governmental funds do not report a liability for 
these amounts unless payment will be made early in the following year. 

Interfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including expenditures and 
transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The accompanying financial statements 
generally reflect such transactions as transfers. Operating subsidies are also recorded as transfers. 

Inventories  

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. The cost of inventory items are 
recognized as expenditures in governmental funds when purchased (purchase method) and as expenses in proprietary 
funds when used (consumption method). 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

35 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Long-term Obligations 
 
The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the related assets are used in governmental fund operations 
or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and 
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Long-term debt consists of notes and bonds payable, capital leases, and 
accrued compensated absences. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the 
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report debt proceeds as other financing sources and payment of 
principal and interest are reported as expenditures. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from 
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  
 
Net Position Classifications 

 
Government-Wide Statements:  Net position is displayed in three components as follows: 

 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt – Consist of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
Restricted net position – Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such 
as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (2) law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted net position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt” or “restricted”  
 

Fund statements: Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.  Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide 
statements. 
 
Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Position 
 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the City’s 
policy is to apply restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.   
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The City uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and 
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

36 

Note A – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Property Tax Calendar 
 
The City’s property tax is levied each October on the value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real property located in the 
City. The lien date is effective January 1 of the year the property tax is levied. A revaluation of all property is required to be 
completed no less than every five years. 
 
Under Idaho Code Section 50-235, the City cannot levy taxes over nine-tenths percent (.9%) of the total City adjusted market 
value for real property located within the City. Taxes are due in two installments on December 20 and June 20 following the 
levy date. Property taxes levied for 2022 are recorded as receivables if uncollected and a deferred revenue amount is recorded, 
in the fund financial statements, to the extent of taxes not estimated to be collected within 60 days of the end of the 
accounting period. 
 
Customer Services Receivable  
 
Amounts owed to the City for customer services are due from area residents and businesses and relate to water services 
provided by the City. The City analyzes past due accounts and current circumstances to evaluate collectability.  
 
General Fund Accounts Receivable  
 
Amounts owed to the City for customer services are due from a variety of sources. The City analyzes past due accounts 
and current circumstances to evaluate collectability.  
 
Advanced Revenue  
 
The City reports advanced revenues on its statement of net position and fund balance sheet. Advanced revenues arise 
when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the 
occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability 
for advanced revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows and 
inflows or resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to 
a future period and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows 
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. As of September 30, 2022, deferred inflows represented 
property taxes receivable unavailable for current use. 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho Base Plan (Base Plan) and additions to/deductions from Base Plan’s fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

37 

Note B – Cash and Investments 
 
At September 30, 2022, the City’s cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 
 Bank Balance Carrying Amount 
 Cash 
 Bank Deposits $ 1,223,301 $ 771,408 
 Cash on Hand     641 
 
 Total Cash  $ 1,223,301 $ 772,049 
 
  Rating     Fair Value 
 Investments 
 Certificate of Deposit  N/A   $ 252,968 
 State Treasurer’s Local Government Pool  N/A     28,939,626 
 Equities and Securities  AAA     658,840 
  
 Total Investments    $ 29,851,434 
 
Reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances as of September 30, 2022: 
 
 City’s Deposits Component   Average 
 and Investments Units Total Maturities 
 
Cash in bank – Deposits $ 762,675 $ 8,733 $ 771,408  NA 
Certificate of Deposit  252,968    252,968  NA 
State Treasurer LGIP  28,705,871  233,755  28,939,626    <12 Mo 
Equities and Securities  658,840    658,840  NA 
Cash on Hand  641    641  NA 
         
Total $ 30,380,995 $ 242,488 $ 30,623,483  
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits  
 
For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City 
will not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. The City’s policy requires all investments should be held in the City’s name, in the bank’s Trust Department, 
or alternately in the Federal Reserve Bank. 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

38 

Note B – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation. It is commonly expressed in terms 
of the credit quality rating issued by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization such as Moody’s, Standard & 
Poor’s and Fitch’s. The rating of the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) as of September 30, 2009 was AAA. The 
LGIP terminated its rating service in December 2009 as the cost of the rating outweighed the benefit to the pool as a 
whole. The funds objectives and overall strategy and structure have not changed.  
 
    Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
 

Certificates of deposit $ 252,968 $ 252,968 $  $ 
Equities    416,588  416,588     
Fixed income          
 Municipal Securities  242,252    242,252   
 
Total investments $ 911,808 $ 669,556 $ 242,252 $ 0 
 

 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Investments that are fixed for longer periods are likely to experience greater variability in their fair values due to future 
changes in interest rates. The City’s policy to mitigate interest rate risk is to structure the City’s portfolio so that securities 
mature to meet the City’s cash demands and ongoing operations, thereby precluding the need to sell securities to the open 
market prior to their maturity and primarily invest in shorter-term securities. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk  
 
When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration represents heightened risk of potential loss. No 
specific percentage identifies when concentration risk is present. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has 
adopted a principal that governments should provide note disclosure when five percent of the total entities investments are 
concentrated in any one issuer. Investments in obligations specifically guaranteed by the U.S. government, mutual funds, 
and other pooled investments are exempt from disclosure. The City’s policy is to invest no more than 50% of their total 
investments in a single security type or with a single financial institution, with the exception of the U.S. Treasury Securities, 
and authorized pools. 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

39 

Note C – Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2022 is as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
 9/30/21 Increases Decreases 9/30/22

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
 Land  $ 9,568,894 $ 428,685 $  $ 9,997,579 

Construction in Progress 19,795,442  7,152,340 (3,730,798)  23,216,984 

 Total 29,364,336 7,581,025  (3,730,798) 33,214,563 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
 Buildings 3,776,867 135,000  3,911,867 
 Infrastructure 18,525,424 1,437,141  19,962,565 
 Improvements 21,694,352 5,648,093  27,342,445 
 Equipment 5,302,360 153,205  5,455,565 
 Right of use leased assets 424,203  424,203 

  Total 49,299,003 7,797,642  57,096,645 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
 Buildings 2,243,244  83,180  2,326,424 
 Infrastructure 7,546,468 649,609  8,196,077 
 Improvements 10,654,734 4,181,540  14,836,274 
 Equipment 4,024,590  232,856  4,257,446 
 Right of use leased assets 117,188  117,188 

Total accumulated depreciation 24,469,036  5,264,373  29,733,409 

Governmental activities capital assets, net  $ 54,194,303 $ 10,114,294 $ (3,730,798) $ 60,577,799 

Business-Type Activities 

 9/30/21 Increases Decreases 9/30/22
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
 Land  $ 1,142,320 $  $  $ 1,142,320 

Construction in progress 2,525,769  394,593  (1,987,085)  933,277 

  Total 3,668,089  394,593  (1,987,085) 2,075,597 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and Improvements 13,002,530  13,002,530 

 Improvements 22,693,014  1,988,143  24,681,157 
 Equipment 1,355,805  33,743  1,389,548 
 Right of use leased assets 116,369  116,369 

 Total 37,051,349 2,138,255  39,189,604 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and Improvements 7,279,247  322,431  7,601,678 
Improvements   10,968,995  604,871  11,573,866 
Equipment 737,918  89,897  827,815 

 Right of use leased assets 51,719  51,719 

Total accumulated depreciation 18,986,160  1,068,918  0  20,055,078 

Business-type capital assets, net $ 21,733,278 $ 1,463,930 $ (1,987,085) $ 21,210,123 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 

Note C – Capital Assets (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General Government $ 322,331 
Public Protection 43,414 
Community services 5,100 
Library 3,341 
Streets  949,105 
Airport 346,285 
Recreation   3,594,797 

 Total Depreciation Expense $ 5,264,373 

Business Activities 
Golf Course $ 226,195 
Water 842,723 

 Total Depreciation Expense $ 1,068,918 

Note D – Government Fund Balances 

The Local Option Tax (LOT) was established in 2005 by City Ordinance No. 796, renewed by City Ordinance No. 887 in 
2011 effective January 1, 2012, and renewed by City Ordinance No. 965 in 2018 effective January 1, 2019. In 2015, two 
additional local LOTs were established by City Ordinance 936. The LOT established in 2011 is to be used for programs 
and groups recommended by the LOT commission and approved by City Council. The two additional LOT’s established 
in 2015 are to be used primarily for street replacement, repair and maintenance. Highway user fees are restricted by State 
Statute and County laws and are legally segregated for funding of infrastructure improvements. Franchise fees are 
established by City Ordinance No. 862 in 2009 for the specific use of funding underground utility expansion.  

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the City 
considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which restricted, committed, 
assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed 
funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City Council has provided otherwise in its 
commitment or assignment actions.  

Resolution 11-19 was adopted in November of 2011 to establish minimum fund balance / net position policies consisting 
of cash flow and budget stabilization. Those minimum balances enable the City to meet debt payments and other 
obligations. The minimum balances established for cash flow are expressed as a percentage of the current years’ operating 
budget. Those minimums are as follows: General Fund – 25%, Special Revenue Funds – 20%, Enterprise Funds – 30%, in 
addition to any sums required under loan or bond agreements. The minimum fund balances established for budget 
stabilization are expressed as a percentage of the three most recent years’ average operating budgets. Those minimums are 
as follows: General Fund – 15%, Special Revenue Funds – 10%. In the event these minimum balances are used, the City 
shall strive to restore the balances to the above levels within no more than three fiscal years following the fiscal year in 
which the reserves were used.  



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

41 

Note D – Government Fund Balances (Continued) 
 
As of September 30, 2022, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 
 

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they are legally 
or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or 
regulations of other governments. Restricted assets included those related to franchise fees, irrevocable split interest 
trust assets held for library and DEQ loan reserves. 
 
Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council.  
The Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, 
modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by the Council. 
  
Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be 
used for specific purposes. Under the City’s adopted policy, only City Council, Finance Director or the Council’s 
finance committee may assign amounts for specific purposes.  
 
Unassigned — all other spendable amounts. 

 
As of September 30, 2022, fund balances are comprised of the following:  
 
  Street/   
  Public    Local Debt Nonmajor 
 General Works Library Recreation Airport Option Service Funds 
 

Nonspendable 
Prepaid $ 24,565 $ 146,481 $  $ 21,000 $  $  $  $  
Interfund rec 800,000      48,183         
    824,565  146,481    69,183         
 
Restricted 
Highway fee    44,725 
Franchise  1,449,756               
    1,449,756  44,725            
Assigned 
Street/PW    1,452,812 
Airport          875,302 
Library      801,224 
Local opt.  483,784          4,013,707 
Debt service              4,272,966 
Capital Proj.                78,065 
    483,784  1,452,812      875,302  4,013,707  4,272,966  78,065 
 
Unassigned  5,671,870      (408,750)         
 
 Total $ 8,429,975 $ 1,644,018 $ 801,224 $ (339,567) $ 875,302 $ 4,013,707 $ 4,272,966 $ 78,065 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

42 

Note E – Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 
 
Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service, subsidies of various City operations and 
re-allocations of special revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the City’s transfer activity. For the year then ended 
September 30, 2022, interfund transfers consisted of the following: 
 

         Transfer from      
 
     General   Water   Airport   Library   Urban   Nonmajor     
     Fund   Fund   Fund   Fund   Renewal  Governmental   Total  
  
Transfer to: 
 General fund $  $ (363,779) $ (65,812) $ (36,753) $  $  $ (466,344) 
 Golf course fund  248,573            248,573 
 Recreation  1,701,235        1,053,329    2,754,564 
 Streets  117,453            117,453 
 Nonmajor              0 
 
    $ 2,067,261 $ (363,779) $ (65,812) $ (36,753) $ 1,053,329 $ 0 $ 2,654,246 
 
 
Note F – Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description  
 
The City of McCall contributes to the Base Plan which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI or System) that covers substantially all employees 
of the State of Idaho, its agencies and various participating political subdivisions. The cost to administer the plan is 
financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan. PERSI issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and the required supplementary information for PERSI. That report may be obtained on 
the PERSI website at www.persi.idaho.gov. 
 
Responsibility for administration of the Base Plan is assigned to the Board comprised of five members appointed by the 
Governor and confirmed by the Idaho Senate. State law requires that two members of the Board be active Base Plan 
members with at least ten years of service and three members who are Idaho citizens not members of the Base Plan except 
by reason of having served on the Board.  
 
Employee membership data related to the PERSI Base Plan, as of June 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 
 Retirees and beneficiaries      53,190 
 Terminated and vested      15,489 
 Active plan members       
  Vested      44,288 
  Non-vested      30,121 
 
       143,088  
 
Pension Benefits  
 
The Base Plan provides retirement, disability, death and survivor benefits of eligible members or beneficiaries. Benefits are 
based on members’ years of service, age, and highest average salary. Members become fully vested in their retirement 
benefits with five years of credited service (5 months for elected or appointed officials). Members are eligible for 
retirement benefits upon attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification. The annual service 
retirement allowance for each month of credited service is 2.0% (2.3% for police/firefighters) of the average monthly 
salary for the highest consecutive 42 months.  
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

43 

Note F – Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
The benefit payments for the Base Plan are calculated using a benefit formula adopted by the Idaho Legislature. The Base 
Plan is required to provide a 1% minimum cost of living increase per year provided the Consumer Price Index increases 
1% or more. The PERSI Board has the authority to provide higher cost of living increases to a maximum of the Consumer 
Price Index movement or 6%, whichever is less; however, any amount above the 1% minimum is subject to review by the 
Idaho Legislature. 
 
Member and Employer Contributions  
 
Member and employer contributions paid to the Base Plan are set by statute and are established as a percent of covered 
compensation and earnings from investments. Contribution rates are determined by the PERSI Board within limitations, 
as defined by state law. The Board may make periodic changes to employer and employee contribution rates (expressed as 
percentages of annual covered payroll) if current rates are actuarially determined to be inadequate or in excess to 
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. 
 

The contribution rates for employees are set by statute at 60% of the employer rate for general employees and 74% for 
police and firefighters. As of June 30, 2022 it was 7.16% for general employees and 9.13% for police and firefighters. The 
employer contribution rate as a percent of covered payroll is set by the Retirement Board and was 11.94% general 
employees and 12.28% for police and firefighters. City of McCall’s contributions were $528,396 for the year ended 
September 30, 2022. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  
 
At September 30, 2022, City of McCall reported am asset for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net 
pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the 
City’s share of contributions in the Base Plan pension plan relative to the total  contributions of all participating PERSI 
Base Plan employers. At June 30, 2022, the City’s proportion was 0.1124747 percent. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2022, City of McCall recognized net pension expense of $498,124. At September 30, 
2022 City of McCall reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 
 
 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows  
 of resources of resources 
 
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 487,150 $ 19,773 
 
Changes in assumptions or other inputs  722,240   
 
Net difference between projected and actual 
Earnings on pension plan investments  1,019,315   
 
Changes in the employer’s proportion and 
differences between the employer’s contributions 
and the employer’s proportionate contributions  103,09  78,068 
 
City of McCall, Idaho’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date  141,122   
 
Total $ 2,472,922 $ 97,841 
 
$141,122 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 
2022. 
 
The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the System 
(active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2022 the beginning of the measurement period ended June 30, 2021 is 
4.6 and 4.6 for the measurement period June 30, 2022.  



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44 

Note F – Pension Plan (Continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense (revenue) as follows: 

Year Ending  
June 30,  Amount  

2023 $  (528,236)
2024   (573,451)
2025   (265,220)
2026   (842,024)

Actuarial Assumptions 

Valuations are based on actuarial assumptions, the benefit formulas, and employee groups. Level percentages of payroll 
normal costs are determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, the 
actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual included in the actuarial valuation is allocated as a level 
percentage of each year’s earnings of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The Base Plan  amortizes any 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability based on a level percentage of payroll. The maximum amortization period for the Base 
Plan permitted under Section 59-1322, Idaho Code, is 25 years.  

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 Inflation 2.30% 
 Salary inflation 3.05% 

Investment rate of return, net of investment expenses 6.35% 
 Cost-of-living adjustments 1.00%. 

Contributing Members, Service Retirement Members, and Beneficiaries 

General Employees and All Beneficiaries -Males  Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 11%. 
General Employees and All Beneficiaries -Females Pub-2010 General Tables, increased 21%. 
Teachers - Males Pub-2010 Teacher Tables, increased 12%. 
Teachers - Females Pub-2010 Teacher Tables, increased 21%. 
Fire & Police - Males  Pub-2010 Safety Tables, increased 21%. 
Fire & Police - Females   Pub-2010 Safety Tables, increased 26%. 
Disabled Members - Males   Pub-2010 Disabled Tables, increased 38%. 
Disabled Members - Females  Pub-2010 Disabled Tables, increased 36%. 

An experience study was performed for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2017 which reviewed all economic and 
demographic assumptions including mortality. The Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2022 is based on the results of an 
actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2022. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using the building block approach and a 
forward-looking model in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

45 

Note F – Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Even though history provides a valuable perspective for setting the investment return assumption, the System relies primarily on an 
approach which builds upon the latest capital market assumptions. Specifically, the System uses consultants, investment managers 
and trustees to develop capital market assumptions in analyzing the System’s asset allocation. The assumptions and the System’s 
formal policy for asset allocation are shown below. The formal asset allocation policy is somewhat more conservative than the 
current allocation of System’s assets. 
 
The best-estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding expected inflation to expected long-term 
real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions are as of 2022. 
 
 Asset Class DB Plans Sick Leave 
 Fixed Income  30.0%  50.0% 
 US/Global Equity  55.0%  39.3% 
 International Equity  15.0%  10.7% 
 Cash   0.0%  0.0% 
 
 Total  100%  100% 
 
Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.35%. The projection of cash flows used to determine 
the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate. Based on 
these assumptions, the pension plans’ net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term expected rate of 
return was determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative 
expense. 
 
Sensitivity of the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  
 
The following presents the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.10 percent, as well as what the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 
 
  1% Decrease   Current Discount Rate  1% Increase 
  (5.35%)   (6.35%)   (7.35%) 
Employer’s proportionate share  
Of the net pension liability (asset) $ 7,818,704 $ 4,430,106 $        1,656,627 
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position  
 
Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERSI financial 
report.  
 
PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required supplementary 
information for PERSI. That report may be obtained on the PERSI website at www.persi.idaho.gov.  
 
Payables to the pension plan 
 
At September 30, 2022, the City reported no payables to the defined benefit pension plan for legally required employee 
contributions. 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

46 

Note G – Leases 
 
Operating Leases Commitments:  Under GASB 87, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use 
asset. The City has entered into various non-cancelable leases, primarily for equipment. Such leases expire at various times 
through 2028. Amortization of the lease expense was $168,907 and interest paid was $14,115 for the year ended September 
30, 2022.  
 
    Governmental Activities   
 Maturity Date Principal Interest Total 
  
 2023    $ 112,398 $ 10,600 $ 122,998 
 2024    88,703  3,903  92,606 
 2025    31,029  1,371  32,400 
 2026    31,514  886  32,400 
 2027    32,005  395  32,400 
 Thereafter    8,079  21  8,100 
 
 Total   $ 303,728 $ 17,176 $ 320,904 
 
 
    Business-type  Activities   
 Maturity Date Principal Interest Total 
  
 2023    $ 59,573 $ 1,377 $ 60,950 
 
 
Note H – Long-Term Debt 
 
Water Fund:   
 
The City has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay a $5.9 million drinking 
water facility promissory note payable to the State of Idaho signed in April 2004. Proceeds from the note provided 
financing to complete phase II of the water treatment facility. The bonds are payable solely from drinking water facility 
revenues and are payable through 2024. Annual principal and interest payments on the note are expected to require less 
than 20 percent of net revenues.  
 
The remaining payments are $179,955 due semiannually, including interest at 2% throughout the term of the loan. The 
schedule of debt service requirements until maturity, is as follows: 
 
 
 Maturity Date Principal  Interest  
 
 2023 $ 347,908 $ 12,314 
 2024  354,633  5,328 

      
  $ 702,541 $ 17,642 
 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

47 

Note H – Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Library Fund:  The City has obtained a general obligation bond to construct a new library facility. The project is estimated 
to begin construction in FY2022. Payments range from $239,756 to $257,500 and are due annually. The bond will be 
repaid over 20 years at a 4% interest rate. The schedule of debt service requirements until maturity is as follows: 
 
 Maturity Date Principal  Interest  
 
 2023 $ 135,000 $ 122,000 
 2024  140,000  116,600 
 2025  145,000  111,000 
 2026  150,000  105,200 
 2027  155,000  99,200 
 2028–2031  690,000  332,200 
 2032–2036  1,010,000  268,350 
 2037–2041  1,170,000  107,550 
 
  $ 3,595,000 $ 1,262,100 
 
  
Golf Fund 
 
Equipment Notes Payable: The City has financed the acquisition of equipment for the golf course. The schedule of debt 
service requirements until maturity is as follows: 
 
 Maturity Date Principal  Interest  
 
 2023 $ 23,373 $ 1,657 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
During the year ended September 30, 2022, the following changes occurred in long-term debt: 
 
  Balance   Balance  Due Within 
 9/30/21 Increases Decreases 9/30/22 One Year 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Compensated absences $ 210,886 $ 15,073 $ (20,954) $ 205,005 $  
Bonds payable  3,715,000    (120,000)  3,595,000  135,000 

           
Total $ 3,925,886 $ 15,073 $ (140,954) $ 3,800,005 $ 135,000 

 
Business-type Activities 
 
Compensated absences $ 54,000 $ 101,222 $ (3,906) $ 151,316 $  
Notes Payable  1,088,399    (362,485)  725,914  371,281 

           
Total $ 1,142,399 $ 101,222 $ (366,391) $ 877,230 $ 371,281 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

48 

Note I – Risk Management 

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial insurance. 

Note J  - Fund Deficit 

As of September 30, 2022, the Recreation Fund had a deficit balance of $416,036. 

Note K – Component Unit 

The McCall Redevelopment Agency (MRA or the Agency) is created by and exists under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 
1965, as amended, and is a separate legal entity. It follows the same accounting policies outlined above for the city.  The 
following is additional information on the URA.  

Cash and Investments 

At September 30, 2022, the URA held $8,733 at US Bank and $233,755 in the local general investment pool. 

Capital Assets
 9/30/21 Increases Decreases 9/30/22

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
 Land  $ 293,115 $  $ (293,115) $ 0 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
 Buildings and improvements 3,498,650 (3,498,650) 0 

 Less accumulated depreciation (3,031,220)  (331,860) 3,363,080 0 

  Buildings and improvements, net 467,430  (331,860)  (428,685) 0 

   Total $ 760,545 $ (331,860) $ (428,685) $ 0 



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Property taxes 4,198,108$             4,202,875$             4,767$  
Local option tax 1,100,000 601,878 (498,122) 
Grants - intergovernmental 1,175,743 1,328,990 153,247 
Licences, permits and fees 499,925 712,552 212,627 
Charges for services 694,875 819,483 124,608 
Refunds and reimbursements 70,000 70,000 
Fines 34,200 34,757 557 
Interest 22,000 67,362 45,362 
Miscellaneous 2,800 20,863 18,063 

Total Revenue 7,727,651 7,858,760 131,109 

Expenditures
Mayor and council 338,548 278,298 60,250 
Network administration 494,591 448,707 45,884 
City manager 485,068 493,691 (8,623) 
Administration 510,608 355,976 154,632 
Finance Department 420,661 425,765 (5,104) 
Public safety 2,131,314 1,813,312 318,002 
City clerk 343,901 313,376 30,525 
Community Services 911,623 647,299 264,324 
Local option tax 1,096,277 433,852 662,425 
Capital outlay 1,298,717 1,021,072 277,645 

Total Expenditures 8,031,308 6,231,348 1,799,960 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (303,657) 1,627,412 1,931,069 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 303,657 (976,273) (1,279,930)              

Total Other Financing Sources 303,657 (976,273) (1,279,930)              

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 651,139 651,139$  

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 7,778,836 7,778,836 

Fund Balance, End of Year 7,778,836$             8,429,975$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

50



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Property taxes 1,734,168$             1,738,327$             4,159$                    
Grants - intergovernmental 153,379                  177,090                  23,711                    
Charges for services 91,788 64,924 (26,864)                   
Earnings on investments 2,500 9,324 6,824                      
Miscellaneous 2,500                      116,690                  114,190                  

Total Revenue 1,984,335               2,106,355               122,020                  

Expenditures
Streets 2,111,539 1,773,648 337,891                  
Capital outlay 902,054                  410,852                  491,202                  

Total Expenditures 3,013,593               2,184,500               829,093                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,029,258)              (78,145)                   951,113                  

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 1,029,258               117,453                  (911,805)                 

Total Other Financing Sources 1,029,258               117,453                  (911,805)                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0                            39,308                    39,308$                  

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,604,710               1,604,710               

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,604,710$             1,644,018$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
STREET / PUBLIC WORKS FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

51



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Property taxes 667,384$                668,641$                1,257$                    
Local option tax                           85,665                    85,665                    
Grants - intergovernmental 10,000 41,811                    31,811                    
Charges for services 8,475 11,504 3,029                      
Earnings on investments 1,000 (1,000)                    
Miscellaneous 4,054,640               18,393                    (4,036,247)              

Total Revenue 4,741,499               826,014                  (3,915,485)              

Expenditures
Community services - library 354,430 357,106 (2,676)                    
Capital outlay 5,300,572               658,012                  4,642,560               

Total Expenditures 5,655,002               1,015,118               4,639,884               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (913,503)                 (189,104)                 724,399                  

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 913,503                  (36,753)                   (950,256)                 

Total Other Financing Sources 913,503                  (36,753)                   (950,256)                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0                            (225,857)                 (225,857)$               

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,027,081               1,027,081               

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,027,081$             801,224$                

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
LIBRARY FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

52



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Property taxes 307,679$                308,173$                494$                       
Local option taxes 176,494                  370,499                  194,005                  
Grants - intergovernmental 181,946                  81,720                    (100,226)                 
Charges for services 40,400 51,965 11,565                    
Earnings on investments 1,000                      114                        (886)                       
Miscellaneous 57,300                    25,674                    (31,626)                   

Total Revenue 764,819                  838,145                  73,326                    

Expenditures
Recreation 506,429 1,175,214 (668,785)                 
Capital outlay 2,021,181               2,221,642               (200,461)                 

Total Expenditures 2,527,610               3,396,856               (869,246)                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,762,791)              (2,558,711)              (795,920)                 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 1,762,791               1,701,235               (61,556)                   

Total Other Financing Sources 1,762,791               1,701,235               (61,556)                   

Net Change in Fund Balance 0                            (857,476)                 (857,476)$               

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 517,909                  517,909                  

Fund Balance, End of Year 517,909$                (339,567)$               

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
RECREATION FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

53



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Property taxes 78,442$  78,330$  (112)$  
Grants - intergovernmental 2,072,433 1,859,519 (212,914) 
Licenses, permits and fees 277,850 335,696 57,846 
Earnings on investments 1,500 4,802 3,302 
Miscellaneous 1,400 11,052 9,652 

Total Revenue 2,431,625 2,289,399 (142,226) 

Expenditures
Airport 359,192 263,101 96,091 
Capital outlay 2,342,127 2,098,408 243,719 

Total Expenditures 2,701,319 2,361,509 339,810 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (269,694) (72,110) 197,584 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 269,694 (65,812) (335,506) 

Total Other Financing Sources 269,694 (65,812) (335,506) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0 (137,922) (137,922)$               

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,013,224 1,013,224 

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,013,224$             875,302$  

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
AIRPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

54



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Local options tax 2,965,700$             3,031,153$             65,453$                  
Grants 1,092,404 125,152 (967,252)
Earnings on investments 10,000 22,183                    12,183                    
Miscellaneous                           95,152                    95,152                    

Total Revenue 4,068,104               3,273,640               (794,464)                 

Expenditures
Local option tax 304,586 86,205 218,381                  
Capital outlay 4,030,340               1,030,559               2,999,781               

Total Expenditures 4,334,926               1,116,764               3,218,162               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (266,822)                 2,156,876               2,423,698               

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out) 266,822                                            (266,822)                 

Total Other Financing Sources 266,822                                            (266,822)                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0                            2,156,876               2,156,876$             

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,856,831               1,856,831               

Fund Balance, End of Year 1,856,831$             4,013,707$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
LOCAL OPTION TAX

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

55



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budget
Original

And Final Actual Variance
Revenues

Earnings on investments $ 29,826$  29,826$  
Property tax 276,000 273,936 (2,064) 
Miscellaneous 498 498 

Total Revenue  276,000 304,260        28,260

Expenditures
General Government 1,500 (1,500) 
Principal payments 276,000 120,000 156,000 
Interest payments 119,756 (119,756) 

Total Expenditures 0 241,256 34,744 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 0 63,004 63,004 

Net Change in Fund Balance 0$  63,004 63,004$  

Fund Balance, End of Year 4,209,962 

Fund Balance, End of Year 4,272,966$             

CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

56



SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability   
PERSI - Base Plan

Last 10 - Fiscal Years *
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Employer's portion of the net pension liability 0.12% 0.13% 0.12% 0.11% 0.11% 0.11% 0.12% 0.11%
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability 1,633,159$      2,479,805$    1,834,028$    1,652,595$    1,259,037$    2,516,325$    (91,027)$        4,430,106$    
Employer's covered-employee payroll 3,516,395$      3,736,238$    3,782,093$    3,820,157$    3,791,742$    3,884,161$    4,372,845$    4,400,419$    
Employer's proportionate share of net pension liability as a percentage 

of its covered-employee payroll 46.44% 66.37% 48.49% 43.26% 33.20% 64.78% -2.08% 100.67%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 91.38% 87.26% 90.68% 91.69% 93.79% 88.22% 100.36% 83.09%

* GASB Statement No.68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available.

Data reported is measured as of June 30, 2022 (measurement date)

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
PERSI - Base Plan

Last 10 - Fiscal Years *
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Statutorily required contribution 393,234$         409,600$      425,774$      430,678$      449,137$      493,865$      525,135$       529,584$      
Contributions in relation to statutorily required contribution 393,234$         409,600$      425,774$      430,678$      449,137$      493,865$      525,135$       528,396$      
Contribution (deficiency) excess - - - - - - - (1,188)           
Employer's covered-employee payroll 3,516,395$      3,624,112$    3,773,897$    3,839,839$    3,934,882$    4,115,620$    4,372,845$    4,400,419$    
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.18% 11.43% 11.28% 11.22% 11.41% 12.00% 12.01% 12.01%

* GASB Statement No.68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available.

Data reported is measured as of September 30, 2022 (The City's fiscal year end)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
57



FEDERAL REPORTS 



COEUR D'ALENE MERIDIAN BOISE HARRISCPAS.COMTWIN FALLS BUHL KETCHUM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
 IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

To the City Council 
City of McCall, Idaho
McCall, Idaho 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
in the United States, the financial statements financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of McCall, Idaho, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of McCall, Idaho’s basic financial statements and have issued 
our report thereon dated Mach 29, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of McCall, Idaho’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of McCall, Idaho’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of McCall, Idaho’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during the audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of McCall, Idaho’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances on 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 



Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

Meridian, Idaho
March 31, 2023 



COEUR D'ALENE MERIDIAN BOISE HARRISCPAS.COMTWIN FALLS BUHL KETCHUM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the City Council 
City of McCall, Idaho
McCall, Idaho 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of McCall, Idaho’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to 
audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect2 on each of City of McCall, Idaho’s 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2022. City of McCall, Idaho’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, City of McCall, Idaho complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 
30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.  

We are required to be independent of City of McCall, Idaho and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of City of McCall, Idaho’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules 
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of McCall, Idaho’s federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of McCall, 
Idaho’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 



aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of McCall, 
Idaho’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform

audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding City of McCall, Idaho’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

 Obtain an understanding of City of McCall, Idaho’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of McCall, Idaho’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Meridian, Idaho  
March 31, 2023 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022 

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

63 

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Entity Identifying Federal

Federal Grantor/Program Title  Number Number Expenditures 

LAND OF WATER AND CONSERVATION FUND: 
Pass through from State of Idaho 

Idaho Department of Parks & Recreation LCWF 15.916 P19AP00218 / 16-0589 $ 75,646 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
Pass through from State of Idaho 

Highway Safety Cluster: 
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 DD-2022-EA-00-00 639
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 OP-2022-EA-00-00  2,358

Total Highway Safety Cluster 2,997 

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster: 
 Idaho Transportation Investment Program 20.205 A020 (146) 97,420 

Direct Program: 
 Airport Improvement Program 20.106 N/A  1,859,519

Total US Department of Transportation  1,959,936

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY: 
Pass through from State of Idaho  
 SLFRF Act Funding 21.027 N/A 9,544 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
Direct Program: 
 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A  1,536

Small, Rural, and Tribal Law Enforcement 
Agency – Body Worn Camera Policy 16.835 N/A  16,049

Total US Department of Justice 17,585 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Pass through from State of Idaho 

Idaho Community Development Block Grant 14.228 ICDBG-21-III-16-SR 238,240 

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES: 
Pass through from State of Idaho 

CARES Act grant 45.310 LS-25208-OLS-21 34,400
Idaho Humanities Council Historic Preservation 
  Group 15.954 P21AF11017-00 5,000 

Total National Endowment for the Humanities 39,400 

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 2,340,351 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO  
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022 

64 

Note A – Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of McCall,
Idaho and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance 
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because this schedule presents only a selected portion of 
the operations of the City of McCall, Idaho, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net position, or cash flows to the City of McCall, Idaho. 

Note B – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  

Note C – Indirect Cost Rate 

The City of McCall, Idaho has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022 

65 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS  

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors’ report issued:  Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness identified? yes X no 
 Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? yes X no 

Noncompliance material to the financial  
  statements noted? yes X no 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness identified? yes X no 
 Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?  yes X no 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with section 
510(a) of the Uniform Guidance? yes X no 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 

20.106 Airport Improvement Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
  type A and type B programs: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? yes  X no 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

No findings related to the financial statements were noted which would be required to be reported under generally 
accepted governmental auditing standards (GAGAS). 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

No findings related to the financial statements were noted which would be required to be reported under generally 
accepted governmental auditing standards (GAGAS). 



CITY OF MCCALL, IDAHO  
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

66 

2021-001 Federal Reporting 

Condition: 

An internal control system design must include elements to insure all reports are filed on time as required by grant
compliance.  

Resolution 

Management implemented a redundancy procedure with a checklist to ensure all required federal reports are submitted 
on time regardless of a change in staffing mid project. This was not a finding in the current year.



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 1 of 12 
4/2023 

 

ARTWORK COMMISSION AGREEMENT 
By and between 

THE CITY OF MCCALL 
And 

JAY RASGORSHEK 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of ______________, 2023, 
by and between the City of McCall (hereafter “City”), a municipal corporation of the State of 
Idaho, and Jay Rasgorshek (hereafter “Artist”), for the purpose of design and installation of a mural 
(hereafter “the Work”) for placement on an exterior wall within the McCall Downtown West 
Urban Renewal Area (hereafter “Site”). 
 
WHEREAS, the McCall Area Comprehensive Plan (2018) includes a goal to “celebrate the culture 
of McCall and creativity of residents through public art (pg. 41);” and  
 
WHEREAS, the City agreed that artwork installed within the McCall downtown is a benefit to the 
public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City adopted procedures and policies for public art selection on June 29, 2012; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a selection panel consisting of representatives from the McCall Redevelopment 
Agency Board of Directors, McCall Public Art Advisory Committee, and the community at-large 
selected the Artist through a competitive proposal process; and  
 
WHEREAS, the McCall Redevelopment Agency unanimously recommended the Artist for 
commission of Work at its March 28, 2023, meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the McCall Public Art Advisory Committee unanimously recommended the Artist 
for commission of Work at its March 27, 2023, meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, McCall City Council has approved commissioning of the Work by the Artist pursuant 
to the McCall Public Art Selection Policy on ______________, 2023. 
 
THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. THE SITE: For purposes of this Agreement, the Site shall be the westerly exterior wall of the 
McPaws Thrift Store building at 301 E Lenora Street, McCall, Idaho.  
 
2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: Artist shall complete the following scope of services: 

a) In collaboration with City of McCall staff, the Artist shall outline selection criteria and 
education schedule for identification of up to three (3) artist apprentices to participate 
in the project; and 

b) In collaboration with City of McCall staff, the Artist shall outline a strategy for 
community engagement and participate at least one public opportunity for community 
members to provide input into the design of the Work; and 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 2 of 12 
4/2023 

 

c) Develop at least three (3) design proposals for the final Work based on public input. 
The proposal will be exhibited at a public venue and on the City of McCall Web site to 
gain community input. Based upon this community input, the McCall Public Art 
Advisory Committee, Site manager, McCall Redevelopment Agency and McCall City 
Council will be asked to approve the final design for the Work; and 

d) Upon City approval of the final design for the Work, development of an installation 
milestone schedule, including information as may be requested by the City project 
manager shall be created. City staff will review and approve the proposed schedule; 
and 

e) Upon City approval of the final design and installation milestone schedule for the 
Work, then the Artist shall install the Work as represented in the approved conceptual 
design. Artist shall work with City’s staff to complete any design decisions and may 
hire necessary sub-contractors to plan, implement and coordinate the installation of the 
Work; and 

f) Provide one title block, not exceeding 100 square inches in size, stating the name of 
the artist(s), title of the Work, year completed, and list of project funders; and 

g) Following completion and installation of the Work, Artist shall prepare information 
and/or documents as set forth in section 8(a). 

 
3. ARTIST RESPONSIBILITES:  

a) In addition to other responsibilities set forth in this Agreement, Artist shall attend 
meetings by video conference or by phone with McCall staff to provide periodic progress 
reports. 
 
b)  Artist shall not assign any of his/her obligations under this Agreement without the 
written consent of the City. This provision shall not prevent the Artist from subcontracting 
for obligations that do not require his artistic talents, including, but not limited to, such 
obligations as engineering, structural engineering, drawing architectural renderings or 
plans for the preparation and submittal of operations and maintenance manual for all works, 
fabrication, or installation. 

 
4. COMPENSATION: The Artist’s fee for the scope of work and services contained in this 
Agreement is Twenty Thousand and No Hundredths Dollars ($20,000.00).  This amount shall 
constitute full payment for all services the Artist shall perform, including necessary materials and 
fees, as set forth in the Scope of Services and this Agreement. Payments shall be in multiple 
installments as follows:  

a) One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) no later than sixty (60) days from submittal of a 
apprenticeship strategy outline as defined by section 2(a) above.  

b) Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) no later than sixty (60) days from completion of 
the scope of services as defined by section 2(b) and 2(c) above including receipt of at 
least three (3) design proposals for the final Work and a summary of community 
outreach activities.  

c) If City approves the final design, proposed location(s) and fabrication and installation 
milestone schedule for the Work, an amount not to exceed Nine Thousand Dollars 
($9,000.00) in incremental amounts based on cash flow needs and fabrication 
milestones as verified with City’s project manager, no later than sixty (60) days from 
the time the City receives Artist’s invoices for fabrication milestones completed, 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 3 of 12 
4/2023 

 

materials ordered, other sub-contractor fees, project management fees, and installation 
of artwork. 

d) The balance of Eight Thousand Dollars ($8,000.00) no later than sixty (60) days from 
final review and approval by the City confirming that Artist has met all terms and 
conditions of the Scope of Services and this Agreement. 

 
5. CITY RESPONSIBILTIES: The City agrees to timely furnish Artist all information, reports, 
data, statistics, drawings and information in its possession concerning matters covered by this 
Agreement, together with timely access to all facilities, personnel and data necessary to perform 
the Work unless such disclosure is prohibited by law. 
 
6. TIME OF PERFORMANCE: Artist shall complete the Scope of Services on or before 
September 30, 2023, or on such other date as may be agreed upon between the Parties in writing.  
 
7. APPROVALS:  Artist shall allow the City to review the Work’s progress as follows:  

a) Initial review and approval of the design and/or working drawings to determine that 
the Work is appropriate for the location(s).  

b) Review and approval of installation methods shall occur within a reasonable period 
prior to the commencement of fabrication or installation, as appropriate. 

c) Periodic review, via photographs, and approval as the Work’s fabrication progresses. 
d) City shall review and approve or disapprove the Work within fifteen (15) days of final 

completion. If, during the approval reviews, City concludes that the Work does not 
conform to the designs as previously approved, or as mutually agreed by the Parties in 
writing, the City shall provide Artist with a notice in writing of specific non-conformity 
and request Artist to address and cure the specific non-conformity within two weeks of 
the reviews. Artist shall have thirty (30) days within which to address, cure, and correct 
any non-conformity. If, after resubmission, the Work still does not conform, this 
Agreement shall be subject to immediate termination for cause. Failure by the City to 
disapprove in writing in a timely fashion shall be presumed to be approval of the Work. 

 
8. PROJECT CLOSE-OUT: 

a) Artist shall submit a conservation/maintenance plan to the City including specific 
recommendations for on-going maintenance and repairs, as well as slides and/or photo and 
written documentation of fabrication and installation of the Work, such as to assist in future 
maintenance, repair, and public education. 

9. REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE, OR ALTERATIONS: 
a) Artist is responsible for all parts and workmanship of the Work for a period of one (1) year 

after acceptance of the Work and shall replace any defective parts or rework any defective 
craftsmanship in a timely fashion at no cost except as provided in section 9(b) and 9(c) of 
this Agreement. 

b) Artist shall not be responsible for and shall not be held liable for any damage beyond the 
control of Artist to the Work, its surfaces, or environment caused by personnel of the City 
or its visitors, or others. 

c) Artist shall not be responsible for and shall not be held liable for any damages to the Work 
by extremely adverse weather conditions, acts of God, vandalism, or other acts abnormal 
to the site. 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 4 of 12 
4/2023 

 

d) Artist shall provide the City with written instructions for the appropriate maintenance and 
preservation of the Work as required by section 8(b) above.  

e) The City may provide basic maintenance, restoration and repairs as it deems necessary. 
City shall be responsible and pay for repairs following expiration of the two-year warranty 
period.  

f) Whenever practical and as funding becomes available, Artist shall be given an opportunity 
to perform and/or act as consultant for the repair or restoration for which Artist shall receive 
reasonable compensation. In the event that the Work is damaged or destroyed, the City 
may, in its sole discretion, relocate, repair, or restore the Work subject to receipt of any 
insurance proceeds and availability of sufficient funds. City reserves the right to determine, 
after consultation with an independent, professional art conservator, if, when and how any 
repair and restoration to the Work can be made, and the nature, scope and anticipated cost 
of any such repair or restoration.  City reserves the right to contract with a conservator, 
rather than Artist, to implement any such repairs or restoration. 

g) For purposes of this Agreement, no modification of the artwork that results from the 
passage of time or the inherent nature of the materials used in the Work shall constitute a 
modification.  In addition, no modification of the Work that is the result of conservation or 
of its public presentation (including but not limited to lighting and placement) shall 
constitute a modification that is prejudicial to the Artist’s honor or reputation or for which 
Artist may claim relief or any remedy from City unless such modification is the direct result 
of gross negligence by City. 

h) The action of the City in the exercise of its governmental powers (including but not limited 
to the issuing of any permit for the redevelopment of land or any structure thereon other 
than action by the City on the specific site of the Work) shall not constitute a modification 
of the artwork for which Artist may claim damages or any other form of relief from the 
City. 

i) By executing this Agreement, Artist consents to the installation of the Work in the Site 
specified in this Agreement.  Artist acknowledges that such installation may subject the 
Work to destruction, distortion, mutilation or other modification by reason of its removal 
from that location. 

j) If a modification of the Work occurs, Artist may give written notice to City requesting 
that his/her name and the artwork be dis-associated, the Work shall not longer be 
designated as the Artist’s Work. 

10. WARRANTY: Upon final acceptance of the completed Work by the City, Artist warrants that 
the Work shall be free from defects in materials and workmanship, including inherent vice.  Artist, 
for a period of two (2) years after acceptance by the City, shall correct any such defects at Artist's 
expense. “Inherent vice” refers to a quality within the material or materials which comprise the 
Work which, either alone or in combination with other materials used in the Work or reacting to 
the environment, results in the tendency of the Work to destroy itself.  Upon written notification 
of a defect in materials or workmanship, Artist shall have sixty (60) days to commence repairs and 
shall conclude the repairs within a reasonable time thereafter. 
 
11. RELOCATION AND/OR REMOVAL OF ARTWORK:  

a) The City shall not relocate or remove the Work and/or substantially modify the site in/on 
which it is located without attempting to notify Artist of the proposed change and 
attempting to reach agreement with Artist regarding the future appearance or location of 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 5 of 12 
4/2023 

 

the Work. Except that the City may authorize the temporary relocation or temporary 
removal of the Work without the Artist’s prior permission. For the purpose of this section 
temporary shall mean to be for a period less than 90 days. 

b) If the City determines that the Work should be permanently removed or, though, decay, 
vandalism or other forces, the Work has lost its integrity, the City shall first make a good-
faith effort to contact the Artist and offer the Work to the Artist at the Artist’s cost to collect 
and remove the Work within six (6) months from the date of notification.  

 
12. OWNERSHIP: Artist warrants that, unless otherwise stipulated, the Work is original, in that 
the Work owes its creation or origin to Artist, and is not the product of copying another's work in 
any manner. Furthermore, Artist warrants and represents he has not previously published the Work 
which is transferred by, and the subject of this Agreement and that Artist is the sole owner of all 
rights therein.  Upon final approval and acceptance of Work, delivery and installation, and final 
payment, City shall own the Work.  Artist hereby expressly waives any right, title or interest in the 
Work.  Artist understands that said waiver includes waivers of the exclusive rights of adaptation, 
publication and display. 
 
13. COPYRIGHT RETENTION:  

a) Artist has retained all rights under the Copyright Act of 1976. 17 U.S.C. § 101 et seq., as 
the sole author of the Work for the duration of the copyright.  

b) Artist grants to the City and its assigns an irrevocable license to make two-dimensional 
reproductions of the Work, including, but not limited to, reproductions used on web sites, 
in brochures, media publicity and exhibition catalogues or other similar publications. Artist 
also consents to the use, at City’s discretion, of Artist’s full name and Artist’s own 
identifying photograph in any publicity or promotional materials produced for the Work, 
whether printed or electronic.  Such consent includes placement of these items on any web 
site the City maintains. City has the right to reproduce images of the Work for educational 
or promotional uses only. 

c) The City is not responsible to prevent third party infringement of the Artist’s copyright and 
not responsible for enforcement of, or protecting, the intellectual property rights of the 
Artist. 

 
14. WAIVERS AND RELINQUISHMENTS OF RIGHTS: Artist agrees to relinquish all rights, 
title, and interest to the Work created for the Project and, hereby expressly waives any rights Artist 
has to such artwork including, but not limited to, the rights afforded artists under the Visual Rights 
Act of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. Sections 101, et seq. Artist understands and agrees that the right of 
integrity, but not of attribution, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. Section 106A, is hereby 
expressly waived except as otherwise provided herein. If at any time following final approval, the 
City chooses to move the Work, City shall make reasonable attempts to contact and to notify Artist 
regarding the City’s plans; provided, however, Artist shall have no right to override or veto the 
City’s plans and Artist hereby waives their right to file a claim or demand of any type against the 
City based upon any future decision regarding the placement of the Work, including those granted 
pursuant to the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Rights Act of 1990. To the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement differ from the Copyright Act of 1976 and Visual Rights Act of 1990, 
the provisions of this Agreement shall govern and Artist expressly waives any such differences in 
the rights and duties.  
 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 6 of 12 
4/2023 

 

15. ARTIST’S INSURANCE:  
a) The Artist shall procure and maintain at his/her expense during the contract period the 

following insurance coverage from an insurance company or companies possessing a 
financial strength rating of at least A- and a financial size category of VII or higher from 
A.M. Best or an equivalent rating service: 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Limit will not be less than $500,000.00 
or the minimum amount as specified in the Idaho Tort Claims Act set forth in Title 
6, Chapter 9 of the Idaho Code, whichever is higher.  Coverage shall include, but 
not be limited to, bodily injury and property damage to third parties, contractual 
liability, products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury 
liability ($500,000.00 limit). 

b. Commercial [Business] Automobile Liability: Limit will not be less than 
$500,000.00 per occurrence for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  Where 
applicable, the City shall be named as an additional insured on the commercial 
automobile liability. 

c. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability:  Artist shall have and maintain 
during the life of this contract, statutory workers compensation, regardless of the 
number of employees (including himself/herself) to be engaged in work on the 
project under this agreement in the statutory limits as required by law and 
employers liability with a limit of no less than $500,000.00 for bodily injury by 
accident or disease.  In case any such work is sublet, the Artist shall require the 
subcontractor provide workers compensation insurance for himself/herself and 
any/all the subcontractor’s employees engaged in such work.  Artist shall provide 
proof of insurance to the City prior to the start of work.  

b) The Artist hereby grants to the City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer 
of said Artist may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 
insurance. Artist agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the City has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. All of Artist’s policies 
shall be primary and Artist agrees that any insurance maintained by the City shall be non-
contributing with respect to the Artist’s insurance. Artist shall advise the City of any 
cancellation, non-renewal, or material change in any policy within five business days of 
notification of such action. 

c) By requiring Artist to maintain insurance with the City named as an additional insured, 
herein, the City does not agree that such coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate 
to protect Artist or such coverage and limits are a limitation on Artist’s liability under the 
indemnities granted to the City in this Agreement.  The Artist may use commercial 
umbrella/excess liability insurance so that Artist has the flexibility to select the best 
combination of primary and excess limits to meet the total insurance limits required by this 
Agreement.  If the Artist maintains higher limits than the minimum shown above, the City 
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained.  Any deductibles 
or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  The City may 
require the Artist to purchase coverage with a lower deductible or retention or provide 
proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense 
expenses within the retention.  The City reserves the right at any time throughout the term 
of the Agreement to adjust the aforementioned insurance requirements, if, in City’s 
reasonable judgment, the insurance required by the Agreement is deemed inadequate to 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 7 of 12 
4/2023 

 

properly protect the City’s interest.  The City reserves the right to modify portions of the 
insurance requirements for the apparent successful bidder or for good cause. 

d) The failure of the City at any time to enforce the insurance provisions, to demand such 
certificate or other evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements, or to 
identify a deficiency from evidence that is provided shall not constitute a waiver of those 
provisions nor in any respect reduce the obligations of the Artist to maintain such insurance 
or to defend and hold City harmless with respect to any items of injury or damage covered 
by this Agreement. 

e) The Artist shall provide the City Clerk with a valid certificate of insurance and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language affecting coverage, in advance 
of the performance of any work and as soon as possible after renewal, exhibiting coverage 
as required by the City’s contract terms and conditions.  Failure to obtain the required 
documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Artist’s obligation to provide 
them.  The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.  
The Artist shall be responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractors independently carry 
insurance appropriate to cover each Subcontractors’ exposures or that all such liabilities 
are covered under the Artist’s policies.  The Certificate of Insurance shall be provided on 
the industry standard form (ACORD 25) or other form acceptable to the City. Certificates 
of insurance shall be issued to: 

City of McCall 
216 E. Park St. 
McCall, ID 83638 

 
16. CITY’S INSURANCE: Upon final completion and installation of the Work, and acceptance 
of the Work, City shall obtain property insurance for the Work which may be included in the City 
of McCall insurance program. 
 
17. INDEMNIFICATION: Artist shall indemnify and save and hold harmless the City, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, from and for any and all liability, losses, 
claims, actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses, 
including reasonable attorney fees, arising from all acts or omissions to act of Artist or its servants, 
officers, agents employees, guests, and business invitees in rendering services under this contract 
or otherwise caused or incurred by Artist, its servants, officers, agents employees, guests, and 
business invitees, and not caused by or arising out of the tortious conduct of the City or its 
employees.  The limits of insurance will not be deemed a limitation of the covenants to indemnify 
and save and hold harmless the City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
volunteers.  If the City becomes liable for an amount in excess of the Artist’s insurance limits, 
Artist covenants and agrees to indemnify and save and hold harmless the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, from and for any and all liability, losses, claims, 
actions, judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses, including 
reasonable attorney fees, to the extent permitted by law. 
 
18. NONDISCRIMINATION: 

a) In the performance of this Agreement Artist, and any sub-contractors, agree not to 
discriminate in their employment practices against any employee, contractor, sub-
contractor or applicant for employment because of the employee's or applicant's race, 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 8 of 12 
4/2023 

 

religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap or sexual orientation and/or 
gender identity/expression.  

b) Artist also agrees to comply with all provisions of Idaho law relative to labor, and all other 
applicable federal, state, and/or local statutes, ordinances, and regulations relative to 
employment, wages, and hours of labor. 

 
19. INDEPENDENT ARTIST: The parties intend that this Agreement create only an independent 
contractor relationship and that Artist is not an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the 
City.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the 
relationship of employer and employee between Artist and the City or between Artist and any 
official, agent or employee of the City.  Both parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee 
of the City. Artist shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
Neither federal, state or local income taxes, nor payroll taxes of any kind shall be withheld and 
paid by City on behalf of Artist or the employees or subcontractors of Artist.  Artist shall not be 
treated as an employee with respect to the services performed hereunder for federal or state tax 
purposes.  Artist is responsible to pay, according to law, Artist’s income tax.  Artist may be liable 
for self-employment (Social Security) tax to be paid by Artist according to law. 
 
20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This is the entire agreement of the parties and can only be modified 
or amended in writing by the parties.  
 
21. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Agreement or application thereof is held invalid, 
such invalidity will not affect other provisions or applications of this Agreement which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to that end, the provisions hereof are 
declared to be severable. 
 
22. AGREEMENT MADE IN IDAHO: The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the validity, 
interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  
 
23. ANTI-BOYCOTT AGAINST ISRAEL ACT:  Within the meaning of the terms as defined 
in Idaho Code 67-2346, Artist certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and will not for the 
duration of this Agreement, engage in a boycott of goods or services from Israel or territories under 
its control. 
 
24. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. All disputes arising out of this Agreement shall first be subject to 
good faith negotiations between the parties.  If such negotiations are unsuccessful, either party 
may notify the other and work in good faith to select a mutually acceptable mediator within thirty 
(30) days after notice. If after good faith effort the parties are unable to agree to a mutually 
acceptable mediator or if mediation is not scheduled within 120 days from the date of notice, or if 
the mediation is not successful in resolving the entire dispute, any outstanding issues may be 
resolved by litigation. in a court in Valley County in the State of Idaho.  The costs of mediation 
shall be borne equally by the parties.  
 
25. ATTORNEY FEES:  If action is brought to enforce the terms or provisions of this Agreement, 
or to enforce forfeiture for default, or to collect damages for breach, the prevailing party in such 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 9 of 12 
4/2023 

 

action shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorney fees together 
with costs authorized by law. 
 
26. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  If a party willfully or negligently fails to fulfill its 
obligations under this Agreement, the other party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement 
by giving written notice to the defaulting party of its intent to terminate and specify the grounds 
for termination. The defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice to cure 
the default. If the defaulting party does not cure the default this Agreement shall terminate. In the 
event of termination for non-performance by City, it shall compensate the Artist for all phases of 
the Scope of Services the Artist has successfully completed and any additional services and 
materials performed or supplied prior to termination; provided however, that such payment shall 
be limited to the amount of compensation set forth herein. In the event of default by the Artist, 
except that caused by the death or incapacity of the Artist, all finished and unfinished drawings, 
photographs, and other Work products prepared and submitted or prepared for submission under 
this agreement shall, at City’s option, become its property. The City shall not relieve the Artist of 
any liability for damages sustained by virtue of the Artist’s breach or default of this Agreement 
and City may reasonably withhold payments due until the exact amount of damages due from 
Artist is determined.  
 
27. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF CITY:  City may terminate this Agreement 
for any reason at any time by giving at least fifteen (15) days notice in writing to Artist.  If the 
Agreement is terminated by City as provided herein, City shall compensate Artist for all phases of 
the Scope of Services Artist has completed to date of written notice of termination and any 
additional services and materials performed or supplied prior to termination, less payments of 
compensation the City has previously made, not to exceed the amount set forth in Section 4. If 
payments the City has previously made exceed the amount of compensation due hereunder, Artist 
shall immediately refund the unearned balance to City. If the City terminates this Agreement due 
to the fault of Artist, Section 26 hereof relative to termination shall apply. 
 
28. FORCE MAJEURE: Neither Artist nor City shall be considered in default in the performance 
of its obligations hereunder to the extent that performance of such obligations are delayed, 
hindered, or prevented by force majeure. Force majeure shall be any cause beyond the control of 
the parties hereto which they could not reasonably have foreseen and guarded against.  Force 
majeure shall include, without limitation, acts of God, strikes, lockouts, fires, riots, civil 
commotion or civil unrest, incendiarism, interference by civil or military authorities, compliance 
with the regulations or orders of any governmental authorities which were not in effect at the time 
of the execution of this Agreement, and acts of war (declared or undeclared). 

  
29.  PARTY REPRESENTATIVES:  For purposes of this Agreement the following persons or 
their designees shall act as party representatives: 

City of McCall:   Robert S. Giles, Mayor, or his designee,  
Artist:    Jay Rasgorshek 
 

30. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of 
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon each party and their successors, 
assigns, legal representatives, heirs, executors and administrators. 
 



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 10 of 12 
4/2023 

 

31. NOTICES:  Written notices to the Parties shall be given by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, and addressed to said parties at the addresses below, unless otherwise designated by 
written notice to the other parties: 
 

City of McCall Artist 
216 E. Park St. Jay Rasgorshek 
McCall, ID 83638 2839 Venus Place 
 Boise, ID 83704 

 
All such notices, except as otherwise provided, may either be delivered personally  

deposited in the United States mail, properly addressed  with postage fully prepaid by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, and shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the 
mail. 
  
  



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 11 of 12 
4/2023 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Artist and McCall do execute this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

  
 

ARTIST:  
 
By: __________________________________     
 Jay Rasgorshek 

 
 
 
CITY OF McCALL, IDAHO: 

 
 
 
     By: __________________________________ 

          Robert S. Giles, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
BessieJo Wagner, City Clerk 
 
       
 
  



Artwork Commission Agreement – Jay Rasgorshek  Page 12 of 12 
4/2023 

 

STATE OF ______________ ) 
   :  ss: 
County of _________  ) 
 
 On this _______ day of ______________, 2023, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
in and for said State, personally appeared JAY RASGORSHEK, known to me to be ARTIST, who 
executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
(SEAL)     Notary Public for _________________ 
      Commission Expires:______________ 
      Residing at:    , ______ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   :  ss: 
County of Valley ) 
 
 On this _______ day of ______________, 2023, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
in and for said State, personally appeared ROBERT S. GILES and BESSIEJO WAGNER, known 
to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of McCall, a municipal corporation of the State 
of Idaho, who executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such city executed 
the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
(SEAL)     Notary Public for Idaho 
      Commission Expires:______________ 
      Residing at: ________________, Idaho 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-2023 - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 04‐2023 
 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF McCALL, IDAHO: 
   

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  COMMISSIONERS  OF  THE  URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF McCALL,  IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS 
THE  McCALL  REDEVELOPMENT  AGENCY,  APPROVING  GRANT 
PARTICIPATION  FUNDING  TO  THE  CITY  OF  McCALL  FOR  PUBLIC  ART: 
DOWNTOWN  MURAL;  AUTHORIZING  THE  APPROPRIATION  AND 
EXPENDITURE  OF  FUNDS;  DIRECTING  THE  CHAIRMAN,  AGENCY 
ADMINISTRATOR  AND  SECRETARY,  RESPECTIVELY,  TO  TAKE 
APPROPRIATE ACTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.    

 
  THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal Agency of the 
City  of  McCall,  Idaho,  also  known  as  McCall  Redevelopment  Agency,  an  independent  public  body, 
corporate and politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, Chapter 
20, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended (hereinafter the “Law”) and the Local Economic Development Act, 
Chapter 29,  Title 50,  Idaho Code,  as  amended  (hereinafter  the  “Act”),  a duly  created and  functioning 
urban renewal agency for McCall, Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “Agency;” 
 

WHEREAS,  the City  Council  (the  "City  Council")  of  the City  of McCall,  Idaho  (the  "City"),  after 
notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan for the Downtown West 
Urban Renewal Project (the “Downtown West Plan”); 
 

WHEREAS,  following  said  public  hearing  the  City  Council  adopted  its  Ordinance  No.  982  on 
October  24,  2019,  approving  the  Downtown  West  Plan,  establishing  the  Downtown  West  revenue 
allocation area (the “Downtown West Project Area”) and making certain findings; 

 
WHEREAS,  the  City made  a  formal  funding  request  for  Agency  contribution  to  two public  art 

projects on  January 17, 2023, specifically a downtown mural project and a project  to wrap  lightboxes 
with local art.  The Agency approved funding for both projects in an amount not to exceed $15,000; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted procedures and policies for public art selection; 
 
WHEREAS,  a  selection  panel  consisting  of  representatives  from  the Agency Board,  the McCall 

Public Art Advisory Committee, and  the community at  ‐large selected  Jay Rasgorshek  (the “Artist”)  to 
design and install a downtown mural to be located on the westerly exterior wall of the McPaws Thrift 
Store building at 301 E. Lenora Street, McCall, Idaho, (the “Public Art – Mural”) following a competitive 
proposal process; 

 
WHEREAS, the City presented an update on the selection of the Artist to the Agency Board on 

March 28, 2023, and the Agency Board supported the recommendation for selection of the Artist; 
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to enter into the Artwork Commission Agreement by and between the 

City and the Artist for the scope of work and services related to the Public Art ‐ Mural in the amount of 
$20,000.00;  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-2023 - 2 

WHEREAS, the Public Art ‐Mural is located within the boundaries of the Downtown West Project 
Area; 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board has determined that it is in the public interest to fund a portion of 

the  Public  Art  ‐Mural  whereby  the  City  will  manage  the  Public  Art‐Mural  project  and  participate  in 
funding a portion of the scope of services outlined in the Artwork Commission Agreement, the Agency 
will fund a portion of the design and installation of the Public Art‐Mural through a one‐time grant to the 
City in support of the Public‐Art Mural in the amount of $7,500.00; 

 
WHEREAS,  the  Agency  Board  finds  it  in  the  public  interest  and  deems  it  appropriate  to 

appropriate funds and authorize the expenditure  in the amount of $7,500.00 to the City following the 
fully executed Artwork Commission Agreement to support the Public Art‐Mural.  

 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF McCALL, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct.   
 
  Section 2:  That the Agency Board hereby appropriates and authorizes payment of the one‐
time  lump‐sum grant participation funding to the City  in the amount of $7,500.00 for costs related to 
the design, fabrication and installation of a mural to be located on the westerly exterior wall of 301 E. 
Lenora Street, McCall, Idaho.   
 
  Section 3:  That payment of  the grant participation  funds  to  the City  is  conditioned upon 
the City’s entering into the Artwork Commission Agreement with the mural artist Jay Rasgorshek.   
 

Section 4:  The  City  will  provide  regular  updates  to  the  Agency  Board  as  the  Public  Art‐
Mural progress and will outline how the Agency’s grant participation funding has been used to support 
the Public Art‐Mural project. 
 
  Section 5:  That  this  Resolution  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  immediately  upon  its 
adoption and approval.   
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of McCall, Idaho, on April 18, 
2023. Signed by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners, on this 18th day of April 2023. 
            APPROVED: 
 
 
            By__________________________________________     
            Mike Maciaszek, Chair 
   
ATTEST: 
 
 
By____________________________ 
Rachel Santiago‐Govier, Secretary 
 
 4831‐6176‐0505, v. 1 




